
 

Red Action Items require roll call votes. 

Full Agenda packets can be found on the Metro COG Web Site at http://www.fmmetrocog.org 

NOTE:  Given the participation of Fargo City Commissioners at Policy Board meetings, such meetings may constitute open public 

meetings of the City of Fargo. 

Metro COG is committed to ensuring all individuals, regardless of race, color, sex, age, national origin, disability/handicap, sexual 

orientation, and/or income status have access to Metro COG’s programs and services. Meeting facilities will be accessible to 

mobility impaired individuals. Metro COG will make a good faith effort to accommodate requests for translation services for meeting 

proceedings and related materials. Please contact Savanna Leach, Metro COG Executive Assistant, at 701-532-5100 at least five 

days in advance of the meeting if any special accommodations are required for any member of the public to be able to participate 

in the meeting. 

PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING 

FARGO, WEST FARGO, HORACE, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA AND MOORHEAD, DILWORTH, CLAY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 

Council of Governments 
p: 701.532.5100 | f: 701.232.5043 

e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org 

www.fmmetrocog.org 
 

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North 

Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 

 

The 597th Policy Board Meeting 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments 

 

THURSDAY, January 20, 2022 – 4:00 p.m. 

Fargo, North Dakota 
OVERALL AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Introductions 

a. Introductions Information Item 

b. Election of Metro COG Policy Board Officers Action Item 

c. Approve Order and Contents of the Overall Agenda Action Item 

d. Approve Minutes of the December 16, 2021 Board Meeting Action Item 

e. Approve January 2022 Bills Action Item 

2. Consent Agenda Action Item 

a. December End of Month Report 

b. Metro COG 4th Quarter Report/Annual Report 

c. 2022-2025 TIP Administrative Adjustment #1 

3. Regular Agenda 

a. Public Comment Opportunity  Public Input 

b. 25th Street Corridor Study Consultant Selection Action Item 

c. TH10 Corridor Study through Dilworth Consultant Selection Action Item 

d. 2021-2022 UPWP Amendment #4 Action Item 

e. Letter of Support – Greater NW Passenger Rail Coalition Action Item 

4. Additional Business  Information Item 

5. Adjourn 

REMINDER:  The next Metro COG Policy Board Meeting will be held Thursday, February 17, 2022 at 4:00 p.m. 

Due to ongoing public health concerns related to COVID-19, Metro COG is encouraging citizens to provide 

their comments on agenda items via email to leach@fmmetrocog.org. To ensure your comments are 

received prior to the meeting, please submit them by 8:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting and reference 

which agenda item your comments address. If you would like to appear via video or audio link for comments 

or questions on a regular agenda or public hearing item, please provide your e-mail address and contact 

information to the above e-mail at least one business day before the meeting. 
 

For Public Participation, please REGISTER with the following link: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_9VzfFU8kR6S-vc-M-9Owzw  

http://www.fmmetrocog.org/
mailto:leach@fmmetrocog.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_9VzfFU8kR6S-vc-M-9Owzw


Agenda Item 1d, Attachment 1 

 

596th Policy Board Meeting 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments 

Thursday, December 16, 2021 – 4:00 pm 

Zoom Web Conference 

 

Members Present: 

Amanda George West Fargo City Commission 

Matthew Gilbertson Moorhead City Council 

John Gunkelman Fargo Planning Commission 

Chuck Hendrickson Moorhead City Council 

Chelsey Johnson Horace City Council (alternate for Jeff Trudeau) 

Steve Lindaas Moorhead City Council 

Jenny Mongeau Clay County Commission 

Julie Nash Dilworth City Council 

Brad Olson West Fargo City Commission 

Dave Piepkorn Fargo City Commission 

Arlette Preston Fargo City Commission 

Rocky Schneider Fargo Planning Commission 

 

Members Absent: 

Tony Gehrig Fargo City Commission 

Jim Kapitan Cass County Commission 

John Strand Fargo City Commission 

Maranda Tasa Fargo Planning Commission 

Jeff Trudeau Horace City Council 

 

Others Present: 

Adam Altenburg Metro COG 

Luke Champa Metro COG 

Ari Del Rosario Metro COG 

Brenda Derrig City of Fargo Engineering 

Dan Farnsworth Metro COG 

Cindy Gray Metro COG 

Savanna Leach Metro COG 

Michael Maddox Metro COG 

Bob Walton NDDOT – Fargo District 

1a. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER, WELCOME, AND INTRODUCTIONS, convened 

The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm, on December 16, 2021 by Chair 

Nash, noting a quorum was present.  Introductions were made. 



 

596th Meeting of the FM Metro COG Policy Board – page 2 

Thursday, December 16, 2021 

1b. Appreciation for Policy Board Chair Julie Nash 

 Ms. Gray thanked Chair Nash for her service as the 2021 Policy Board Chair. 

 

1c. Approve Order and Contents of Overall Agenda, approved 

Chair Nash asked for approval for the overall agenda. 

MOTION: Approve the contents of the Overall Agenda of the December 

16, 2021 Policy Board Meeting. 

Mr. Lindaas moved, seconded by Mr. Olson  

MOTION, passed 

Motion carried unanimously. 

1d. Past Meeting Minutes, approved 

Chair Nash asked for approval of the Minutes of the November 18, 2021 Meeting. 

MOTION: Approve the November 18, 2021 Policy Board Meeting Minutes. 

Mr. Lindaas moved, seconded by Mr. Gunkelman  

MOTION, passed 

Motion carried unanimously. 

1e. Monthly Bills, approved 

Chair Nash asked for approval of the December 2021 Bills as listed on 

Attachment 1d. 

MOTION: Approve the December 2021 Bills List. 

Mr. Olson moved, seconded by Ms. Preston 

MOTION, passed 

Motion carried unanimously. 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 

 Chair Nash asked for approval of Items a-d on the Consent Agenda. 

 

a. November Month End Report 

b. Section 5310/5339 Transit Grant Applications 

c. Approval and Prioritization of TAP Applications 

d. Metro COG 2022 Meeting Schedule 

 

MOTION: Approve Items a-d on the Consent Agenda. 

Mr. Lindaas moved, seconded by Mr. Piepkorn  

MOTION, passed 

Motion carried unanimously. 

3. REGULAR AGENDA 

3a. Public Comment Opportunity 

No public comments were made or received. 



 

596th Meeting of the FM Metro COG Policy Board – page 3 

Thursday, December 16, 2021 

3b. MTP Amendment #2 

Mr. Maddox presented Amendment #2 to the Metropolitan Transportation Plan: 

MetroGROW 2045. Metro COG is processing an amendment to the MTP to 

address the application for funding for the reconstruction of the North Broadway 

Bridge over the Red River between Fargo and Clay County. This project was not 

anticipated when the MTP was completed in 2019 and is an example of 

changing conditions that must be addressed throughout the planning, 

programming, and project development process. 

Ms. Mongeau praised Metro COG for being a great partnership for local 

jurisdictions, as Cass County, Fargo, Clay County, and Moorhead are all working 

together to address this project. 

A public hearing was opened at 4:17p.m. No comments were received. The 

public hearing was closed at 4:18p.m. 

Ms. Gray added that Metro COG’s Public Participation Plan requires that any 

amendments to the MTP must have three public comment opportunities. The first, 

was held Wednesday, December 8, the second being the TTC meeting held 

December 9, and the final opportunity at this Policy Board meeting. 

MOTION: Approve Amendment #2 to the Metropolitan Transportation Plan, 

MetroGROW 2045. 

Mr. Schneider moved, seconded by Mr. Lindaas. 

MOTION, passed 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

*Mr. Hendrickson joined the meeting 

3c. 2021-2022 UPWP Amendment #3 

Ms. Gray presented Amendment #3 to the 2021-2022 Unified Planning Work 

Program. Ms. Gray explained that this is a normal process, as the spending and 

staff hours can vary from estimates that are made in the development of the 

UPWP.  

Review of the 2021 Staff Hours and Operation Costs showed an unspent amount 

of over $43,000 in staff hours, due to the newest planner not starting until 2022. 

The overhead costs found an unspent amount of $3,323, but could be somewhat 

less as the agency closes out the fiscal and calendar year. The potential use for 

these overages are for a timekeeping software, the purchase of StreetLight data 

license, and remodeling of the newly acquired office space. Ms. Gray stated 

that Savanna Leach has reached out to several providers of timekeeping 

software and has identified the software that both meets our needs and is the 

most affordable.   

Project carryover totals approximately $284,000, which is due to multi-year 

projects, and late starts on at least two programmed projects. She pointed out 

that the amount shown in the power point slide was lower than the amount 



 

596th Meeting of the FM Metro COG Policy Board – page 4 

Thursday, December 16, 2021 

shown in the staff memo, as recent invoices have allowed safely reducing the 

carryover amounts. The goal is to not underestimate carryover. 

MOTION: Approve Amendment #3 of the 2021-2022 UPWP, which includes 

the carryover of unused operations, overhead, and consultant fees, and 

authorize the Executive Director to purchase Vision Timekeeping Software 

for use during 2022. 

Ms. Preston moved, seconded by Mr. Lindaas  

MOTION, passed 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

**Ms. Mongeau left the meeting 

3d. Approval and Prioritization of STBG Urban Roads Applications 

Mr. Champa presented the applications received for the Urban Roads Program 

(Surface Transportation Block Grant Program – STBGP). All submittal packages 

are prioritized by Metro COG and then sent to NDDOT to go through the State’s 

project prioritization and selection process.  Metro COG has received no project 

applications for the Urban Regional Roads Program this year. 

Urban Roads Program [Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBGP) – 

Metro COG has received six (6) projects for FY 2026 solicitation.   

 North Broadway Bridge Reconstruction (Fargo) – Demolition of the existing roadway bridge 

and reconstruction of a new concrete span bridge to accommodate two driving lanes 

and a new sidewalk.  A portion of roadway leading up to bridge will need geotechnical 

stabilization.  The estimated total project cost is $7,500,000, of which $4,200,000 (56%) is 

requested through federal funds, $1,050,000 (14%) through local matching funds, and 

$2,250,000 (30%) through non-participating Clay County funding sources.   

 45th St – 16th Ave N to I-94 North Ramp Concrete Pavement Repair (Fargo) – Concrete 

pavement rehabilitation project to replace concrete panels that have broken.  The 

estimated total project cost is $10,800,000, of which $8,640,000 (80%) is requested through 

federal funds, and $2,160,000 (20%) through local matching funds.   

 Bicycle and Pedestrian bridge over the Red River at 40th Avenue S River (Fargo) – 

Construction of a pedestrian bridge over the Red River.  The estimated total project cost is 

$4,000,000, of which $1,760,000 (44%) is requested through federal funds, $440,000 (11%) 

through local matching funds, and $1,800,000 (45%) through non-participating City of 

Moorhead funding sources. 

 Shared Use Paths at Drain 27 from 52nd to 63rd Ave S, River Drive S from Harwood Dr S to 

40th Ave S, and Drain 53 from 64th to 73rd Ave S (Fargo) – Construction of new shared use 

paths.  The estimated total project cost is $2,400,000, of which $1,920,000 (80%) is 

requested through federal funds and $480,000 (20%) through local matching funds.   

 Capital Bus Purchase (Fargo) – Purchase of replacement fixed route transit vehicles.  The 

estimated total project cost is $1,250,000, of which $1,000,000 (80%) is requested through 

federal funds and $250,000 (20%) through local matching funds.   

 Sheyenne Street Reconstruction from 40th Ave S to 52nd Ave S (West Fargo).  

Reconstruction from a 2-lane rural roadway section to a 2- to 4-lane urban roadway 

section with bicycle and pedestrian facilities.  The estimated total project cost is 



 

596th Meeting of the FM Metro COG Policy Board – page 5 

Thursday, December 16, 2021 

$18,000,000, of which $14,400,000 (80%) is requested through federal funds and $3,600,000 

(20%) through local matching funds. 

Ms. George said that while she does not downplay the importance of the 

Sheyenne Street project, she does not want to see the local share be passed 

onto the area residents in the form of specials. She said the project more benefits 

Horace than it does West Fargo, and is wondering if a cost share is possible. 

Ms. Gray reminded the board that all of these projects will be submitted to the 

NDDOT, and this is a matter of prioritization, and this prioritization is for FY2026. 

Metro COG will be in transition to TMA status, and funding sources and amounts 

are subject to change. 

 

Mr. Champa explained that during the discussion at the Transportation Technical 

Committee meeting on December 9, the TTC recommended Policy Board 

approval of a combination of projects for distribution of funds with a ranking 

following Combination #1 as shown in the presentation (N Broadway, 40th Ave 

Ped Bridge, Shared Use Path, Capital Bus Purchase), or a second 

combination/ranking (45th St CPR, 40th Ave Ped Bridge, Shared Use Paths) as the 

second rank. Other projects not prioritized will still be submitted to NDDOT as the 

lowest priorities. The board agreed with the TTC’s recommendation for 

combination 1 (N Broadway bridge, 40th Ave Ped Bridge, Shared Use Path, and 

Capital Bus Purchase) and a motion was made to reflect that. 

 

MOTION: Approve the prioritized list of projects, as prioritized by the Policy 

Board, for the NDDOT Urban Roads Program solicitations and subsequent 

submittal of proper project application materials to the NDDOT by the 

December 31, 2021 deadline. 

Mr. Lindaas moved, seconded by Ms. George 

MOTION, passed 

Motion carried unanimously. 

*Mr. Schneider left the meeting 

 

3e. Approval and Prioritization of HSIP Applications 

Mr. Champa presented the NDDOT HSIP applications for prioritization and 

approval. The North Dakota Department of Transportation (NDDOT) is soliciting 

projects to be funded through the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 

for fiscal year (FY) 2026, in the development of the 2023-2026 State Transportation 

Improvement Program (STIP).  All submittal packages are prioritized by Metro 

COG and then sent to NDDOT to go through the State’s project prioritization and 

selection process.   

 

Highway Safety Improvement Program – Metro COG has received four (4) 

projects for FY 2026 solicitation.   
 19th Ave N & University Drive, 45th Street and 23rd Ave S (Fargo) – Removal of negative left 

turn offsets. The estimated total project cost is $350,838, of which $315,754 (90%) is 

requested through federal funds and $35,084 (10%) through local matching funds.   



 

596th Meeting of the FM Metro COG Policy Board – page 6 

Thursday, December 16, 2021 

 Southbound 45th St between 19th Ave S and I-94 bridge (Fargo) – Addition of an auxiliary 

lane.  The estimated total project cost is $379,933, of which $341,940 (90%) is requested 

through federal funds, and $37,993 (10%) through local matching funds.   

 Veterans Blvd and 36th Ave E, Veterans Blvd and 40th Ave E (West Fargo) – Removal of 

negative left turn offsets.  The estimated total project cost is $337,000 of which $303,300 

(90%) is requested through federal funds and $33,700 (10%) through local matching funds. 

 19th Ave E and 9th St E, 38th Ave W and Sheyenne St, and 32nd Ave E and 4th St E (West Fargo) 

– Removal of negative left turn offsets.  The estimated total project cost is $461,500, of 

which $415,350 (90%) is requested through federal funds and $46,150 (10%) through local 

matching funds.   

All of the projects submitted for Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 

funding are consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the Metro COG 

MTP and no amendment is required to request federal funds for these projects.  

A top priority project was identified by the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation’s 2018-2020 high crash location publication, released in 2021.  The 

TTC discussion found priorities to be as follows: 
 

1. Veterans Blvd and 36th Ave E, Veterans Blvd and 40th Ave E (West Fargo) 

2. 19th Ave N & University Drive, 45th Street and 23rd Ave S [1 High Crash Location] 

(Fargo) 

3. Southbound 45th St between 19th Ave S and I-94 bridge [2 High Crash 

Locations] (Fargo)  

4. 19th Ave E and 9th St E, 38th Ave W and Sheyenne St, and 32nd 

       Ave E and 4th St E (West Fargo) 

 

MOTION: Approve the prioritized list of projects, as prioritized by the Policy 

Board, for the NDDOT Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 

solicitations and subsequent submittal of proper project application 

materials to NDDOT by the December 31, 2021 deadline. 

Mr. Olson moved, seconded by Mr. Gunkelman 

MOTION, passed.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

3f. University & 10th Street Study Consultant Selection 

Mr. Maddox presented Bolton and Menk as the highest-ranked consultant for the 

University and 10th Street Corridor Study. Two firms proposed on the project, and 

both were interviewed. Bolton and Menk was ranked higher than SRF Consulting. 

 

MOTION: Approval of Bolton & Menk as the preferred firm to complete the 

University Drive and 10th Street Corridor Study, and to authorize Metro COG 

to enter into a contract, following successful contract negotiations. 

Mr. Piepkorn moved, seconded by Ms. Preston 

MOTION, passed.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

3g. Employee Salary Adjustment 

Ms. Gray presented a request for a 2022 adjustment in Employee Salaries, 

formerly known as Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA). The 2021-2022 UPWP 



 

596th Meeting of the FM Metro COG Policy Board – page 7 

Thursday, December 16, 2021 

budgeted for a 3% increase. At the December 8 Executive Committee meeting, 

there was a recommendation of at least a 3% increase, but potentially more 

depending on discussion at the Policy Board meeting. Ms. Gray presented 

budgeting options of 3, 3.5, and 4% in combination with 2022 health insurance 

premiums, which were less than budgeted, and showed how they affect the 

2022 budget. 

 

MOTION: Approve a 3.5% adjustment to Metro COG employee salaries, 

effective January 1, 2022. 

Ms. George moved, Seconded by Mr. Lindaas 

MOTION, passed. 

Motion carried unanimously 

 

3h. Summary of Benefits Presentation 

Per the Metro COG Policies and Procedures, the Executive Director is required to 

provide a summary of employee benefits every year. Ms. Gray gave a brief 

presentation of all of the benefits that Metro COG offers its employees. 

4. Additional Business 

No additional business. 

5. Adjourn 

 

The 596th Meeting of the FM Metro COG Policy Board held Thursday, December 

16, 2021 was adjourned at 5:31 p.m. 

THE NEXT FM METRO COG POLICY BOARD MEETING WILL BE HELD January 20, 2021, 

4:00 P.M.  

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Savanna Leach 

Executive Assistant 



  

 
Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 

Council of Governments 
p: 701.232.3242 | f: 701.232.5043 

e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org 

www.fmmetrocog.org 

 

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North 

Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 

 

To: Policy Board 

From: Luke Champa, Associate Transportation Planner 

Date: 01/13/2022 

Re: 2022-2025 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Administrative 

Adjustment #1 

 

The Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments (Metro COG) processed an 

Administrative Adjustment to reflect minor changes to projects in the 2022-2025 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  Based on the policies pertaining to TIP 

modifications in Section 10 of the Metro COG 2022-2025 TIP, no formal MPO action is 

required for Administrative Adjustments: 

To administer an adjustment to an approved TIP, Metro COG requires a minimal 

process in which the adjustment information be presented to the TTC and Policy 

Board.  No formal approval process or public comment period is required.  Metro 

COG staff prepare a memorandum highlighting the changes to the project(s) 

that require an adjustment and send said memo to the applicable cognizant 

agencies. The adjustment is then brought to the TTC and Policy Board as an 

informational item; this step may occur before or after a memo is sent to 

applicable cognizant agencies.  When an applicable State agency (NDDOT or 

MnDOT) receives an administrative adjustment memo, they may begin their 

process of amending their respective STIP which may or may not also require an 

administrative adjustment.  The procedure to process an administrative 

adjustment to the TIP can take up to 5-10 days at Metro COG and even longer 

at the State level depending upon which modification threshold (adjustment or 

amendment) said changes meet. (p. 110) 

Please find the attached letter to cognizant agencies, dated January 3, 2022, which 

highlights project changes. 

 

INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

 

Agenda Item 2c 



champa
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 2c, Attachment 1





Metro COG ID

State Number From To

MnDOT 8220033 2022 MN 336 2.3 I‐94 US 10 **CRRSAA** On MN 336, from jct. I‐94 to jct. US 10, Minor CPR  Rehabilitation 2,500,000$             2,500,000$       

1414‐12 and Grinding  1,000,000$             CRRSAA 1,000,000$       

MnDOT 8200011 2023 MN 9 2.1 Barnesville I‐94 On MN 9, In Barnesville to I‐94, Reconstruct, Mill and Overlay, Rehabilitation  4,727,991$             2,995,345$       

1409‐25 Multi‐Use Trail, and ADA Improvements (Associated with  5,227,991$             STBGP‐R 3,395,345$       

project 2190040) 1,732,646$       

State 1,832,646$       

Project DescriptionLead Agency Project 

Year

Project Location Length Project Limits Improvement Type

 Total Project Cost 

Federal 

Revenue 

Source

Other 

Revenue 

Source  Revenue 

ADMINISTRATRIVE ADJUSTMENT 1 ‐ 2022‐2025 METRO COG TIP

Minnesota Department of Transportation

champa
Typewritten Text

champa
Typewritten Text
Administrative Adjustment 1, Attachment 1



 

A PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING 

FARGO, WEST FARGO, HORACE, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA AND MOORHEAD, DILWORTH, CLAY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 

Council of Governments 
p: 701.532.5100| f: 701.232.5043 

e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org 

www.fmmetrocog.org 

 

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North 

Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 

Agenda Item 3b 

 
 
 

To: Policy Board 

From: Michael Maddox, AICP 

Date: January 13, 2022 

Re: 25th Street Corridor Study – Consultant Selection 

 

 

The City of Fargo requested the addition of the study of the 25th Street South corridor 

from 32nd Ave S to 64th Ave S to the 2021-2022 UPWP.  Metro COG included this project 

in Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) Amendment #2 in the summer of 2021.  The 

purpose of this study is to analyze the needs of the corridor in advance of a planned 

future roadway project to replace failing pavements.   

 

The City of Fargo would like to identify any improvements that could be made to 

improve vehicular circulation, improve bicycle and pedestrian movements, enhance 

the context/character of the roadway, and forward the goals of Fargo’s Go2030 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

Metro COG has budgeted $125,000 to complete the 25th Street Corridor Study ($100,000 

COG - 80%, $25,000 - local match provided by City of Fargo – 20%).   

 

Metro COG released an RFP on November 24, 2021 and proposals were due on 

December 22nd.  Metro COG received four proposals in response to its RFP, from: 

 

 SRF Consulting Group 

 KLJ with subconsultant TC2 

 Bolton & Menk with subconsultant Houston Engineering 

 Stantec with subconsultant Quality Counts 

 

Interviews were conducted with each of the firms on January 7, 2022.  The selection 

committee scored and ranked each of the firms based upon each firm’s project 

approach, expertise, availability, as well as other factors.  The committee selected KLJ 

with subconsultant TC2 as the preferred firm to complete the 25th Street Corridor Study. 

 
 

Requested Action: Approval of KLJ with subconsultant TC2 as the preferred firm 

recommended by the study’s consultant selection panel to complete the study. and 

approval for the Executive Director to enter into contract with said consulting team for 

the 25th Street Corridor Study. 
 
 



 

A PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING 

FARGO, WEST FARGO, HORACE, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA AND MOORHEAD, DILWORTH, CLAY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 

Council of Governments 
p: 701.532.5100| f: 701.232.5043 

e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org 

www.fmmetrocog.org 

 

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North 

Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 

Agenda Item 3c 

 

To: Policy Board 

From: Michael Maddox, AICP 

Date: January 13, 2022 

Re: TH 10 Corridor Study thru Dilworth – Consultant Selection 

 
The Fargo Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments (Metro COG) programmed a study 

within its Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) to study TH 10 from 34th Street, through Dilworth 

to Hwy 336.  This study is a continuation of the US 10/75 Corridor Study that was completed in 

2020.  MnDOT has included the reconstruction of segments of TH 10 and TH 75 within their CHIP 

(10-year plan). 

 

The study will analyze multimodal transportation needs along the corridor as well as context-

sensitive features as the corridor traverses through Dilworth’s historic downtown district.  Dilworth 

has included funds within its budget that may be used for increased land use and 

redevelopment analysis should that be desired by the City.  Land use analysis is included in the 

current scope of work, and that analysis has been deemed eligible for federal funding.  The 

contract could be amended to include additional study if public and stakeholder input identifies 

the need for more detailed review of redevelopment, land use or urban design as the project 

progresses. 

 

In October 2021, Metro COG’s Policy Board approved the Request for Proposal (RFP) to secure a 

consultant to complete the technical and planning tasks outlined in the scope of work under an 

approved project budget of $160,000 ($128,000 from federal CPG funds and $32,000 from local 

funds provided by MnDOT). Metro COG received four proposals prior to the proposal deadline 

on Monday, January 29, 2021. 

 

Proposals were received from the following consultant teams: 

 

 HDR 

 KLJ 

 Bolton & Menk 

 Apex Engineering 

 

The consultant selection panel met with and interviewed the consultants on December 14, 2021 

to further understand each team’s technical qualifications, project approach, task deliverables, 

and past project experiences. The selection was based upon scoring criteria, written technical 

proposals, and the in-person (virtual) interviews. 

 

The Selection Committee interviewed all four proposing consulting firms, scored, and ranked 

each firm.  After rankings were tallied, Apex Engineering was the firm preferred by the Selection 

Committee to complete the TH 10 Corridor Study thru Dilworth.  Apex is teamed with TC2 

(Transportation Collaborative) and HKGI. Metro COG staff met with Apex on Wednesday, 

January 4, 2022 to fine tune their proposed scope of work for the project.  Metro COG  received 

a final scope of work and associated fee sheet.  Staff is confident that the final scope of work 

and fee will not exceed the amount budgeted for this study.  

 

Requested Action:  Approve Apex Engineering as the preferred firm recommended 

by the study’s consultant selection panel to complete the study, and authorize the 

Executive Director to enter into a contract with said consulting team for the TH 10 

Corridor Study through Dilworth. 

 



 

A PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING 

FARGO, WEST FARGO, HORACE, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA AND MOORHEAD, DILWORTH, CLAY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 

Council of Governments 
p: 701.532.5100| f: 701.232.5043 

e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org 

www.fmmetrocog.org 

 

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North 

Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 

Agenda Item 3d   

 
 
 

 

To: Transportation Technical Committee 

From: Cindy Gray, Executive Director 

Date: January 14, 2022 

Re: Amendment #4, 2021-2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to discuss a proposed amendment to the 2021-2022 

UPWP. The amendment includes the following two changes: 

 

 The reallocation of staff hours from other categories to the Metro-wide Housing 

Needs Analysis and the inclusion of more details about this project in the work 

program, and 

 

 The purchase of a license for StreetLight software, which is used across the 

metropolitan area for transportation planning, traffic studies, and traffic impact 

studies.   

 

Metro-Wide Housing Needs Analysis 

After several months of determining the funding participation for this study, the 

following funding approach has been compiled for consultant fees for the study: 
 

December 2021 Funding Scenario - Metro Wide Housing Study 

Jurisdiction/Entity Proposed Participation Level Commitment 

Cass County $5,000  Verbal commitment from Co. Engr. 

Clay County $5,000  Approved by Board 

Dilworth $2,000  Verbal interest from City Mgr.  

Fargo $105,000  Approved by Commission 

Horace $2,000  Council approved 

Moorhead $15,000  Approved by City Management 

West Fargo $16,000  Verbal commitment from mgmt. 

Non-governmental entities $0    

Total $150,000    
 

In addition to the funding above, which is designated as the consultant budget, the 

City of Fargo has entered into contract with Metro COG to provide $20,000 in local 

funds to cover Metro COG’s time associated with project management and 

administration (Attachment 1).   

 

The draft request for proposals (RFP) for the study was completed by Metro COG in 

September, 2021 and has been under review by local staff. Comments from planning 

representatives at several local jurisdictions are being incorporated into the RFP, and it 

will be added to the packet as Attachment 2 no later than Monday, January 10.  



 

A PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING 

FARGO, WEST FARGO, HORACE, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA AND MOORHEAD, DILWORTH, CLAY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

Agenda Item 3d  

This proposed UPWP amendment regarding the addition of the Metro-Wide Housing 

Needs Analysis and the purchase of a StreetLight license, along with the draft RFP for 

the study was brought forward to the Executive Committee, which is made up of an 

elected representative of each jurisdiction, at their January meeting. The Executive 

Committee recommended approval to the TTC and Policy Board, with the 

understanding that their staff would continue to refine the housing study RFP leading up 

to the Policy Board meeting.   

 

The bulk of the 190 staff hours for the amendment will be taken from hours that are 

already included in the 700 Category of the UPWP, which includes Agency Outreach 

and Local Planning Assistance. Staffing includes the Executive Director – Cindy Gray, 

the Community and Transportation Analysis – Adam Altenburg, GIS Coordinator / 

Assistant Planner – Jaron Capps, and Office Manager – Savanna Leach.   

 

The additional $20,000 in local funds removes $20,000 from the CPG funded portion of 

the UPWP (operations), made up of a combination of staff time and overhead costs, 

which consists of the 80% federal/20% local funding split (i.e. $16,000 federal, $4,000 

local).  This frees up $20,000 for the next item included in the amendment.   

 

Purchase of StreetLight Subscription 

 

Our UPWP was structured around the assumption that we would continue to purchase 

a StreetLight license for $5,000 per year through the arrangement MnDOT had with 

StreetLight.  However, in the fall of 2021, MnDOT renewed their contract with 

StreetLight, and the company raised the price of the license to $6,000 and limited the 

MPOs to using the license only within the state of Minnesota. The additional $1,000 is 

not an issue and can be accommodated by transferring $1,000 within our overhead 

budget from “travel and training” to “licenses and subscriptions”. However, we were 

told the company would be monitoring the use of the license to ensure it wasn’t used 

beyond the borders of MN. This essentially means we need to work out another way to 

acquire StreetLight access since the vast majority of our studies require us to analyze 

traffic conditions metro-wide, and some of our projects in 2022 are limited to studies 

within the North Dakota side of the metro area. 

 

We have coordinated with the other two MPOs in ND (Bis-Man and The Forks), and it 

does not seem feasible to purchase a StreetLight license cooperatively, because the 

company bases the price of the product on the population of an area, and the other 

two MPOs are unable to make a purchase of that size. NDDOT is considering a 

statewide StreetLight license, which would hopefully offer a similar arrangement for the 

MPOs as the MNDOT license, but they do not think they will successfully complete such 

a process until late in 2022, and this would be too late for use in the update of our 

travel demand model (TDM) and for the University Drive and 10th Street Corridor Study 

and the US Highway 10 Study through Dilworth, among other things.  

 

StreetLight’s proposal to Metro COG allows unlimited access to Metro COG staff plus 

five consultants plus staff members at NDSU’s Advanced Traffic Analysis Center (ATAC).  

We expect this to meet our needs during the course of the next year.  We are hopeful 



 

A PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING 

FARGO, WEST FARGO, HORACE, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA AND MOORHEAD, DILWORTH, CLAY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

Agenda Item 3d  

that by 2023, we will be able to purchase a combination of Minnesota and North 

Dakota subscriptions that provide the same level of data for a reduced price.   

 

Budgetary Impact of StreetLight Purchase 

 

The cost proposal from StreetLight (Attachment 3) breaks down as shown in the table 

on the following page. The proposal is dependent upon Metro COG a) purchasing the 

MnDOT subscription, and b) completing the purchase prior to February 1, 2022. The 

proposal would allow us to make the purchase without going through an RFP process 

due to the price being less than $50,000 (not counting the subscription through 

MnDOT, which is already budgeted and will be purchased separately.   

 

Description of StreetLight Fees and Credits Charges 
Budgetary 
Impact Proposed Action 

Annual Subscription Fee $59,000      
  
  
  
  
  
Use $20,000 of freed up 
funds from local funding 
of operations and 
overhead for housing 
study; use 29,500 of 2021 
operations carryover 
funding 

Req'd 10% service fee credit bundle $5,900    

Subtotal $64,900    

      

Credit of fee for MnDOT Subscription  
(-$6,000) $58,900    

      

16% Discount for Executing Contract before 
Feb. 1, 2022 (-$9,400) $49,500  $49,500  

 

As described in the table above, the purchase of the StreetLight subscription (i.e. 

license) can be made using the following funding sources: 

 

$20,000 From freed up CPG funds budgeted for operations and overhead 

as a result of project management contract for housing study. 

Includes $16,000 Federal funds, $4,000 local funds. Local match 

already billed as part of 2022 dues.  

 

$29,500 From 2021 carryover of operations funding. Includes $23,600 in 

Federal funds, $5,900 in local funds. The local match for these funds 

was never billed, because we didn’t fill the position that was 

budgeted for the funds during 2021.  

 

Therefore, the resulting budgetary impact to local jurisdictions is $5,900 in local 

match which will be billed using the proportions approved for the 2022 budget: 

 
Cass Co Clay Co Dilworth Fargo Horace Moorhead West Fargo 

5.3% 6.1% 2% 50% 1.3% 19.3% 16.2% 

$312 $360 $118 $2,950 $76 $1,134 $950 



 

A PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING 

FARGO, WEST FARGO, HORACE, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA AND MOORHEAD, DILWORTH, CLAY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

Agenda Item 3d  

  

Given the uniqueness of StreetLight’s platform (Attachment 4) and product and the 

fact that we used it extensively in 2020 and 2021, this purchase allows us to continue to 

build on the data and use of the past couple of years.  

 

After this purchase is made, approximately $15,500 remains in operational carryover 

funds ($12,400 Federal funds, $3,100 local funds). Until the use of these funds is 

determined, we will not know which entities are responsible for the 20% local match of 

$3,100.   

 

At their regular meeting of January 13, the Transportation Technical Committee 

recommended approval of this proposed amendment to the 2021-2022 UPWP.   

 

Requested Action:  Approve Amendment 4 to the 2021-2022 UPWP, including the 

addition of the Metro-wide Housing Needs Analysis, the adjustment to staff hours as 

described, and the purchase of StreetLight using $29,500 in 2021 operational 

carryover funds. 

 

  

 

 
 



gray
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 3d, Attachment 1











 

 

Exhibit A 
 
 

City of Fargo, North Dakota and the  
Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments 

PROJECT ADMINISTRATION FOR THE HOUSING NEEDS AND MARKET ANALYSIS 
FOR THE CASS COUNTY, ND AND CLAY COUNTY, MN MSA  

(2021#1004) 
 
Overview.  The purpose of this study is to collect data and document the housing needs of the region 
both in the very near-term and out to the year 2032 (ten-year forecast).  In addition to data analysis, the 
scope of the study includes providing case study examples that demonstrate how to successfully 
implement the type of housing that is needed. Case study examples should be aimed at ways to meet 
identified needs that are not currently in use within the MSA.  
 
The study area will include the Cass County, ND and Clay County MSA, with primary focus on the cities of 
Dilworth, Fargo, Horace, Moorhead and West Fargo. In addition, consideration will be given to the of 
communities in the surrounding areas within Cass and Clay County, including Barnesville, Glyndon, 
Hawley, and Sabin, MN and Argusville, Casselton, Harwood, Kindred, and Mapleton, ND and several 
other smaller cities in both counties. Local leaders are interested in how the housing and demographic 
inputs impact the housing market as a whole, and to what extent policies and laws are affecting housing 
development.  
 
Consistent with contract 2021#1004, Metro COG shall perform project administration duties for the 
Project. The scope of work and general project approach for the preparation of the RFP, the 
administration of the qualifications-based selection process, contract negotiations, coordination with 
project stakeholders, oversight and review of the consultant’s work, and administration of the Project is 
set forth below. 
 
Scope of Work.  Metro COG has prepared the following scope of work for the Project. This project 
would be initiated in December of 2021, and would be completed on or before December 31, 2022. 
Project completion would constitute the acceptance of the final Project by the Fargo City Commission. 
Below is a description of each focus area: 
 

1. Project Management and Administration. Project management and administration includes 
activities Metro COG shall be accountable for to fully manage the project such as staff time, 
technology and equipment needs, and documentation. Metro COG shall be responsible for: 

a. Pre-project as described below. 
i. Completing the Request for Proposals (RFP), incorporating comments from the 

City of Fargo and other project participants, 
ii. Disseminating the RFP through North Dakota Department of Transportation, 

LinkedIn, American Planning Association, Western Planners Association, APA 
Minnesota, and other professional organizations where consultants specializing 
in housing needs and market analyses would regularly search for RFPs,  

iii. Responding to consultant questions regarding the Project and the RFP, 



 

 

iv. Distributing proposals to the City of Fargo and other local participants,  
v. Distribution of an evaluation matrix for the proposals, 

vi. Scheduling interviews of consultants, 
vii. Contract negotiations, and 

viii. Contracting with selected consultant. 
 

b. Project management activities upon project initiation. 
i. Serving as the primary point of contact for the consultant team, 

ii. Scheduling and maintaining regular progress meetings with the consultant and 
the City of Fargo Planning Director or another designee, 

iii.  Coordinating with local partners and ensuring the consultant is coordinating 
with local partners and stakeholders, 

iv. Monitoring the scope of work and schedule to ensure the project meets 
expectations,  

v. Reviewing products of the study to ensure quality, 
vi. Reviewing project progress reports and invoices and processing payment,  

vii. Participation in stakeholder engagement and project adoption meetings, and 
viii. Project close-out activities. 

 
 

Fees for Service.  The total cost to Metro COG for the performance of work pursuant to this agreement 
shall not exceed a total of $15,000 for which the City of Fargo shall be responsible. This amount shall 
include all project costs including labor, general and administrative overhead, travel, fixed fees, 
materials, supplies, and miscellaneous needs as detailed in Exhibit B.  

 
1. Direct Costs.  Direct costs under this agreement shall be total direct labor hours (190 hours) 

multiplied by staff hourly rates for a total of $11,218.90 (labor + mileage). 
 

2. Indirect Costs.  Indirect costs are recouped via the Indirect Allocation Rate (IAR) and are 
calculated by multiplying the IAR and total direct costs. Indirect costs under this agreement shall 
be the current IAR (78.91 percent) multiplied by the total direct labor costs ($11,128.00), plus 
estimated mileage for a total of $20,000.00. 
 

3. Eligible Project Costs.  Eligible project costs include those with a direct relation to 
transportation. Metro COG, NDDOT and FHWA have estimated that an additional 100 hours are 
eligible for CPG funding and are covered within Metro COG’s annual Unified Planning Work 
Program within the Local Planning Assistance Category. 
 

4. Ineligible Project Costs.  Ineligible costs include tasks which do not have strong transportation-
related focus or component. Metro COG, NDDOT and FHWA have estimated that the 190 hours 
budgeted above and allocated to the Project are ineligible for CPG funding. These hours shall be 
100 percent locally funded by the City of Fargo. 
 

5. Invoices.  Metro COG shall invoice the City of Fargo one time for reimbursement of its share of 
locally funded project costs concurrent with approval of this contract. 

 
Timeline.  The timeline for this project shall be as mutually agreed upon by Metro COG, the City of Fargo 
and the selected consultant. 



 

 

 
Final Deliverables.  Upon project completion, all electronic files of the Project (Microsoft Word, Adobe 
InDesign, Adobe PDF, and ArcGIS ArcMap) shall be handed over to the City of Fargo on a USB flash drive 
or other satisfactory means of digital delivery.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Exhibit B 
 
 

Fee Schedule and Staff Hours 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

FARGO-MOORHEAD  

METROPOLITAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
 

PROJECT NO. 2022-1004 
 

  

DRAFT 

Housing Needs and Market Analysis  

for the Cass County, ND and Clay County, MN MSA  

 

 

January 2022 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

____________________________ 

Cindy Gray 
Metro COG, Executive Director 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 2 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

The Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments (Metro COG) requests proposals 

from qualified consultants for the following project: 

Housing Needs and Market Analysis  

for the Cass County, ND and Clay County, MN MSA 
 

Qualifications based selection criteria will be used to analyze proposals from responding 

consultants. The most qualified candidates may be invited to present a virtually hosted 

interview. Upon completion of technical ranking and interviews, Metro COG will enter into 

negotiations with the top ranked firm. Sealed cost proposals shall be submitted with the 

proposal. The cost proposal of the top ranked firm will be opened during contract 

negotiations. Those firms not selected for direct negotiations will have their unopened cost 

proposals returned. Metro COG reserves the right to reject any or all submittals. This project 

will be funded, in part with federal transportation funds and has a not-to-exceed budget of 

$150,000. 

Interested firms can request a full copy of the RFP by telephoning 701.532.5100, or by e-mail: 

metrocog@fmmetrocog.org. The RFP will also be posted at www.fmmetrocog.org.  

All proposals received by 4:30 pm (Central Time) on Monday, February 21, 2022 at Metro 

COG’s office will be given equal consideration.  Proposals received after 4:30 pm (Central 

Time) on February 21, 2022 will not be considered.  Respondents must submit a PDF of the 

proposal, and one (1) sealed hard copy of the cost proposal (see Exhibit A).  

The digital version (PDF) of the proposal may be emailed. The consultant must verify that the 

email was received with the PDF attachment prior to 4:30 pm on the due date. Sealed cost 

proposals shall be shipped to ensure timely delivery to the contact identified below: 

Cindy Gray, Executive Director 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments 

One 2nd Street North, Suite 232 

Fargo, ND 58102 

gray@fmmetrocog.org  

701-532-5103 

Fax versions will not be accepted as substitutes for the proposals or the sealed cost proposal. 

Once submitted, the proposals will become property of Metro COG. 

Questions must be directed to Cindy Gray (phone number and email shown above).  

Note:  This document can be made available in alternative formats for persons with disabilities 

by contacting Savanna Leach, Office Manager at 701.532.5100 or leach@fmmetrocog.org. 

http://www.fmmetrocog.org/
mailto:gray@fmmetrocog.org
mailto:leach@fmmetrocog.org


Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

   

I. Agency Overview ...................................................................................... 4 

II. Background Information ........................................................................... 4 

III. Project Purpose ........................................................................................... 6 

IV. Scope of Work and Performance Tasks ................................................. 6 

V. Implementation Schedule ...................................................................... 13 

VI. Evaluation and Selection Process ......................................................... 13 

VII. Proposal Content ..................................................................................... 14 

VIII. Submittal Information .............................................................................. 15 

IX. General RFP Requirement ...................................................................... 16 

X. Contractual Information ......................................................................... 17 

XI. Payments ................................................................................................... 18 

XII. Federal and State Funds ......................................................................... 18 

XIII. Title VI Assurances .................................................................................... 18 

XIV. Termination Provisions .............................................................................. 20 

XV. Limitation on Consultant ......................................................................... 20 

XVI. Conflict of Interest .................................................................................... 20 

XVII. Insurance ................................................................................................... 21 

XVIII. Risk Management .................................................................................... 21 

Exhibit A – Cost Proposal Form 

Exhibit B – Federal Clauses 

 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 4 

Note: Throughout this RFP, Metro COG may be referred to as ‘Client’ and the 

consult ing firm may be referred to as ‘Consultant’, ‘Contractor’, or ‘Firm’.  

I AGENCY OVERVIEW 

The Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments (Metro COG) serves as the 

Council of Governments (COG) and Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the 

greater Fargo, North Dakota – Moorhead, Minnesota Metropolitan Area. Member 

jurisdictions include the North Dakota cities of Fargo, Horace and West Fargo and the 

Minnesota cities of Dilworth and Moorhead, as well as Cass County, ND and Clay County, 

MN.  

II BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Greater Fargo-Moorhead metropolitan statistical area (MSA) population has grown 

nearly 18 percent since 2010, from approximately 209,000 to over 246,000.  The 2020 MSA 

population exceeded the 2020 projections that were made in 2010 by approximately 

5,000. The 2035 population projection developed in the Fargo-Moorhead 2016 

Demographic Forecast ranges from 309,000 to 317,000. The 2045 projection is 330,000 to 

342,000. These projected growth levels, combined with the initiation of the FM Diversion, 

the recent groundbreaking on the Career Workforce Academy, and the continued 

growth of the metropolitan area as a medical, agricultural, educational, technical, 

cultural, and transportation hub of the region have resulted in concerns about the 

housing market and the extent to which the region is currently meeting the needs of its 

current and future workforce, as well as the needs of other sectors of the population, and 

the changes that may need to be implemented in the future to meet the housing needs 

of this growing metropolitan area.   

 

In 2015, a study entitled the Regional Workforce Study – Greater Fargo/Moorhead Region 

was completed. One of the recommendations of the study was to “increase access to 

and the supply of affordable housing”. The study found that access to affordable housing 

for low-income workers is low in the region. Opportunities for first-time home buyers seem 

to have become even more limited in the years since the study was done, making 

workforce attraction and retention a concern.  

 

Recently, the Greater Fargo Moorhead Economic Development Corporation (GFMEDC) 

and the Fargo Moorhead West Fargo Chamber of Commerce collaborated to hold a 

retreat of leaders throughout the metropolitan area. A dominant area of concern 

identified by this group was housing, as it relates to workforce retention, attraction, and 

sustainability.  The EDC and the Chamber have collaborated with local businesses and 

governments to form Fueling our Future (https://fuelingourfuture.net/), which is described 

as “A consensus regional agenda, bringing together resources to focus on large-scale 

solutions that create lasting regional impact, led by business and community leaders.”.      

 

City planning departments have been asked to respond to the housing situation as part 

of their work with developers and agencies on housing subdivisions and programs; 

https://fuelingourfuture.net/


Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 5 

however, they are currently experiencing a severe lack of up-to-date data to inform and 

guide policy-makers, housing agencies, developers, and non-profits involved in housing. 

Concerns vary between jurisdictions, with some communities having higher than average 

rental rates, and others wanting more rental housing opportunities. City leaders struggle 

to balance concerns about small single-family residential lots with constant demands for 

more affordable owner-occupied housing opportunities. Past studies have looked at 

metropolitan area cities individually, and at different degrees of depth, providing an 

“apples to oranges” comparison of data throughout the region.  

 

Older areas of the community, some of which have by default become the more 

affordable areas, are considered by many to be more desirable because of their 

character and mature trees, as compared to newer areas. Regardless, maintenance 

and condition are concerns in some cases, and in other cases, these houses have been 

purchased as investments and are being used as rental property, particularly in close 

proximity to area universities and colleges. In the past, City leaders have implemented 

programs to rehabilitate older homes to restore their status as single-family dwellings 

versus apartment units. Some programs to maintain older homes, reduce their use as 

multiple family dwellings, and ensure their sustainability are intact, while others have 

come to an end, and data is needed to determine where and how to target housing 

programs in older neighborhoods. 

 

There are several anecdotal observations and experiences; such as: 

• First-time home buyers are in competition with empty nesters for homes in the 

same price range  

• Elderly people in the metro area have experienced rent increases in subsidized 

housing units, resulting in on-going affordability concerns.   

• Housing options for service workers or attainable housing for families is scarce. 

• A variety of housing choices for an array of price points is not available so 

households are choosing housing that is not preferred. 

• There are not enough housing options for in-migration populations to allow the 

metro area to be a community of choice in comparison to peer cities, and not 

enough choices to satisfy prospective members of a workforce needed to support 

a well-rounded economy.  

• Seniors or empty nesters do not have age-appropriate attractive housing choices 

at attainable price points to allow for downsizing. 

• Demand (i.e. desire) for housing, particularly owner occupied, frequently does not 

match the vision or expectation of prospective home owners. 

  

Both the public and leaders within the community wish to avoid meeting short-

term needs in a manner that becomes undesirable, unsustainable, and blighted 

in the future.  

 

Differences exist between Minnesota and North Dakota relative to the development of 

some types of housing, and study partners are interested in identifying differences that 

are barriers, and in continuing to work on removing barriers that are already known to 

them. The same is true for zoning regulations within the region. The City of Moorhead, for 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 6 

example, has worked hard to find ways to compensate for differences in taxation 

between Minnesota and North Dakota, and wants to ensure these differences 

acknowledged and considered within the study. This will ensure that the study identifies 

opportunities and barriers for all study partners, and helps individual communities identify 

community-specific strategies.  

 

III Project Purpose 
 

The purpose of this study is to collect data and document the housing needs and 

demands of the region in conjunction with a market analysis for both the very near-term 

and out to the year 2032 (ten-year forecast).  In addition to data analysis, the scope of 

the study includes providing case study examples that demonstrate how to successfully 

implement the type of housing that is needed and desired. Case study examples should 

be those that are not currently in use within the MSA, aimed at ways to meet identified 

needs. Local leaders, planning departments, and community development officials are 

concerned that steps taken to meet today’s needs and demands contribute to the long-

term sustainability and quality of our housing market, rather than becoming blighted and 

unsustainable at some point in the future.  

 

The study area will include the Cass County, ND and Clay County, MN MSA, with primary 

focus on the cities of Dilworth, Fargo, Horace, Moorhead and West Fargo. In addition, 

consideration will be given to communities in the surrounding areas within Cass and Clay 

County, including Barnesville, Glyndon, Hawley, and Sabin, MN and Argusville, Casselton, 

Harwood, Kindred, and Mapleton, ND and several other smaller cities in both counties 

which are currently showing evidence of attracting new housing. Local leaders are 

interested in how the housing and demographic inputs impact the housing market as a 

whole, and to what extent policies and laws are affecting housing development.  

 

If feasible, a housing data collection and metric system will also be created to track 

housing trends in our future. 

 

IV SCOPE OF WORK AND PERFORMANCE TASKS 

Below are tasks the Consultant is expected to complete as part of this project: 

Task 1 – Project Management and Coordination 

The Consultant will be required to manage the study and coordinate with any 

subconsultants, as well as be responsible for all documentation and equipment needs.  

The Consultant will identify a project manager from their team to act as the direct point 

of contact for Metro COG’s project manager.   

 

The Consultant should expect monthly (or, at times, bi-weekly) progress meetings with 

Metro COG to discuss the status of the project, seek any guidance, clarification, or 

information, and discuss any issues or concerns regarding the project.  The Consultant 

should expect additional meetings with Metro COG on an as-needed basis.  It’s 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 7 

anticipated that these meetings will usually be virtual web-based meetings.    

 

Additionally, the Consultant should expect to prepare monthly progress reports, submit 

adequate documentation of any and all travel and expense receipts, and prepare and 

submit invoices on a monthly basis.  When submitting progress reports, the Consultant 

and subconsultant(s), if applicable, will be required to outline the following:  

  

• Performed work during the reporting period  

• Upcoming tasks  

• Upcoming milestones 

• Status of scope and schedule 

• Any issues to be aware of 

 

All invoices, travel and expense receipts, and progress reports, are due to Metro COG’s 

project manager no later than the 2nd Thursday of each month to ensure invoices are 

processed in a timely fashion. 

 

Task 2 – Data Collection  

Data necessary to conduct the analysis shall be collected and documented as part of 

the study. These data components will be used to establish existing conditions, and will 

be critical to the identification of issues and both short term and longer-term needs.   

 

Consultants should identify the data necessary to a) conduct the needs analysis, and b) 

respond to the questions and concerns as described in Task 4, as part of their proposal. 

Data collected should include information about the existing housing program and 

incentives within the metropolitan area, and their level of effectiveness.   

If feasible, data collection should be able to be geo-coded and illustrated in maps to 

further illustrate where growth and change is occurring.  Ideally, common census units 

should be used to understand factors graphically with maps. 

At the conclusion of this study, data collections and assemblies should be shareable with 

the client for future use in GIS or other data management software as coordinated with 

the Client. 

Task 3 – Public and Stakeholder Input 

The Consultant will propose an approach to stakeholder engagement, which shall 

ultimately be placed in a public outreach and communication plan, to be reviewed and 

approved by the Study Review Committee (SRC).  The consultant should propose how 

the team would handle both virtual and in-person meetings, and virtual opportunities 

should be available even after in-person meetings are deemed more acceptable from 

a public health standpoint.   



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 8 

SRC membership is expected to include representation from the Cities of Fargo, West 

Fargo, Horace, Moorhead, Dilworth, the Home Builders Association of Fargo-Moorhead, 

and Metro COG.  

Focus groups related to the housing, development, mortgage/finance, and real estate 

industries should be recommended by the consultant team with input from local SRC 

members. The study participants are also interested in the experiences of recent home 

buyers and those currently searching for a home to buy.   

The consultant should explain the extent to which input from the general public is also 

important to this project, and consultants need to present an approach to gathering 

input from the public.  The consultant should include in their scope of work a plan to 

gather input and experiences from recent home buyers or prospective home buyers 

(currently searching) representing different price points within the metropolitan market.  

The consultant should also include in their scope of work a plan to seek input and 

experiences from households on the lowest spectrum of the market, such as those who 

are fully dependent upon social security, or those for whom housing costs exceed 

thresholds considered ideal from an affordability perspective. Seniors living in subsidized 

housing, where rent increases have affected affordability, are also a group of interest.  

Metro COG maintains an up-to-date list of local media outlets that can be used for press 

releases regarding public input opportunities. Public notices and social media boosts shall 

be paid for out of the project budget. If direct mailings are needed to large numbers of 

recipients, Metro COG will work with the consultant and local partners to determine the 

best approach to paying for printing and postage.  

Website options for the project could consist of either a project website, or content 

provided for a housing study page within Metro COG’s website. Proposals should explain 

your team’s recommended approach.    

Task 4 – Metro-Wide Analysis of Existing Conditions  

Based on the data collected as part of Task 2 and the input collected as part of Task 3, 

the consultant shall conduct an analysis of the existing conditions and those of the recent 

past by analyzing the data with respect to the housing supply and demand of the 

metropolitan area.    

In addition to documenting the housing needs of our metropolitan area, our study 

partners are interested in documenting how many housing units, by type and price point, 

are gained or lost due to the following on a yearly basis: 

• New construction, 

• Restored from damage (rehabilitated), 

• Converted from nonresidential (i.e. existing building reconfigured to housing), 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 9 

• Conversion of owner-occupied to rental or vice versa 

• Conversion of single-family housing to multiple family, or vice versa 

• Lost to demolition/disaster, 

• Damaged or condemned, 

• Existing residential building converted to nonresidential, and 

• Other actions that have resulted in significant changes to the overall housing supply 

Questions that need to be answered by the analysis include: 

• Are there unmet housing needs in the metro area? If so, what are those needs 

and what are the characteristics of the population groups experiencing those 

needs? 

•  How much housing does our metro area need, both in the short term, and 

throughout the remainder of the decade, and what are the characteristics of 

the housing units that are needed? Based on population trends, how is that 

need likely to evolve? 

• What is the demand for housing at various price points?  What are the primary 

drivers of demand and how much is driven locally vs. from in-migration from 

other markets? Does this differ across housing type or price point? 

• What housing types are needed to fulfill the gaps in our housing supply?  

• With respect to all of the above, what geographic areas, product types or 

price segments have the greatest imbalance between supply and demand?  

• Are there significant numbers of households that are “over housed”, and is that 

due to a lack of other housing choices that meet their needs? What is the 

relationship between this and other segments of the population that is seeking 

housing alternatives? 

• Are segments of the population with different demographics and different 

financial situations competing for the same types of homes (e.g. first-time 

home buyers and empty nesters who are scaling down)? If so, what are these 

groups, and how do their needs compare?    

• What other data is needed for our metro jurisdictions to successfully apply for 

housing-related grant applications, and can that be provided with this study?  

• How does the local housing market compare to peer markets? Are there 

relative strengths and/or weaknesses?  



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 10 

The study must also provide: 

• An analysis of the balance between rental and owner-occupied housing 

stock, housing type, and related housing information by jurisdiction and, to the 

extent feasible, census geographies within the jurisdictions.  

• Availability of housing stock for first time home buyers 

o Types and features of housing and neighborhoods desired by first time 

home buyers 

• Availability of housing stock for empty nesters and seniors 

o Types and features of housing and neighborhoods desired by empty 

nesters and seniors 

• Condition of existing housing stock within various price ranges 

• Perceived or real issues that impact the desirability of existing housing stock at 

various price points 

• Along with a summary of the housing programs and incentives that exist in the 

community, how effective are these programs at meeting the needs of 

different segments of the population? 

• A summary of housing needs and issues identified in recently completed plans 

(e.g. Comprehensive Plans of the metro area cities and counties, and Fargo’s 

Core Neighborhoods Plan)  

• A summary of housing trends in the country that may arrive in the region or that 

policy makers should be aware of 

In addition to the above, there are areas of concern that local study partners would like 

to pursue as part of the data collection and stakeholder engagement tasks. They are 

described below:  

• Which community markets have the greatest shortfall in new housing development 

relative to demand, and the reasons for those disparities (e.g. market factors, 

regulatory constraints, neighborhood context, etc.)? 

• Which inputs to housing construction – land, materials, labor or capital – contribute 

most to tight inventory and house and rent pricing in this metro area and/or in 

surrounding communities within our metropolitan planning area (Cass County ND 

communities of Kindred, Mapleton, Casselton, Harwood, and Argusville; Clay 

County, MN communities of Sabin, Glyndon, Barnesville and Hawley)?  



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 11 

The findings of Task 4 shall be provided in a document that uses graphics, maps, and text 

to explain the findings of the analysis. Infographics are preferred as a way to illustrate and 

summarize key findings, but more detailed data and written material is also important for 

users who need to delve into the details of the data used to complete the analysis.  

Task 5 – Strategy for Meeting Short Term Needs   

At this time, several developments and projects have been initiated that have the 

potential to change the housing demand in the metropolitan area. A few examples of 

the economic activity within the area include: 

• Amazon – Amazon is developing a 1,000,000 square foot fulfillment center in Fargo 

and is in the process of filling 500 full-time jobs. Two large industrial subdivisions and 

another large warehouse distribution center have been proposed for 

development in the months during which Amazon’s site has been under 

construction.  

• ND State College of Science Career Innovation Center – NDSCS is in the process 

of building this career academy in Fargo. When completed, the academy is 

expected to create over 100 jobs and help fulfill jobs needed within the region.  

• FM Diversion – construction on the FM Diversion has already begun, but the 

workforce needed to complete the project within the anticipated seven-year 

time frame is expected to require hundreds of employees (approximately 800 at 

any given time), resulting in spin-off effects to the economy both locally and 

regionally.  Home - Metro Flood Diversion Authority (fmdiversion.gov) 

These are just a small sampling of some of the significant projects that have the potential 

to change the demand for housing in the metropolitan area within the very short term. 

Leaders within the metro community need to gain an understanding of what this growth 

in employment will translate to in terms of housing needs.  How do our communities 

address these needs, demands, and expectations and still meet the on-going needs of 

other elements of the workforce?  

Task 6 – Strategy Beyond the Short Term 

As part of this task, the metro area is interested in answering the following questions: 

1. Looking beyond the next two to three years, approximately how many homes will 

be needed, and at what price points? 

2. To meet the projected needs, what can individual jurisdictions within this metro 

area do to change their policies or regulations to better meet the needs of the 

workforce at all levels? This may include addressing housing options for households 

who are not currently in the workforce due to retirement or other reasons. What 

best practices are being used by other communities? 

https://fmdiversion.gov/


Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 12 

3. What scenarios need to take place for the metro area to successfully meet the 

needs of the community as a whole to ensure long term sustainability, rather than 

short term workforce needs?  

4. Based on stakeholder and public input, what neighborhood and housing features 

should be emphasized in the housing supply?  

Along with answering the questions posed above, the analysis should provide case 

studies where cities or other entities have successfully completed projects or created an 

environment that utilizes best practices that help fulfill the need and demand for 

workforce housing or other types of housing that indirectly help meet the needs for 

workforce housing. The case studies should also demonstrate how housing needs were 

met while also balancing competing community goals, such as good urban design. The 

case studies should describe the project, the needs that were met, and the strategy used 

in making the development or redevelopment possible.    

Task 7 – Development of Draft and Final Report 

Proposals should discuss the consultant team’s approach to the development of the 

draft and final report. To a large degree, the SRC is most interested in receiving data in a 

format that can be broken down into a fine-grained level that will help them understand 

the housing situation in small areas within their community, with the understanding that 

the final report will consist of a document that is less granular, and presents information 

and recommendations in a format that can be understood and digested by the public 

and policy-makers.  

Detailed data collection and analyses should be presented in appendices. Spreadsheets 

and other data products shall be provided throughout the process for review and use by 

SRC members.     

Along with the draft and final report, the scope of work shall include Executive Summaries 

for each of the participating jurisdictions of Cass County, Clay County, and the Cities of 

Dilworth, Fargo, Horace, Moorhead and West Fargo. The Executive Summaries shall 

highlight the most significant characteristics of each jurisdiction and how they compare 

to the MSA as a whole. 

Task 8 – Adoption Process 

After presenting the findings of the analysis and the final draft of the study to the SRC, the 

consultant is expected to assist Metro COG staff and local planning staff by providing 

presentation materials and tools that can be used to inform local Planning Commissions 

and other boards and committees about the findings of the study.  In addition, 

consultants are requested to include the following in their scope of work: 

a. Presentation to the Study Review Committee and Metro COG Policy Board. 

b. Presentation at a minimum of one local event, such as Eggs and Issues (sponsored 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 13 

by the Fargo Moorhead West Fargo Chamber of Commerce) or an event of the 

Home Builders Association of Fargo Moorhead.   

c. Joint presentations to local Planning Commissions and elected officials regarding 

study findings as needed (minimum 4).  

   

V  IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE 

1) Consultant Selection 

Advertise for Consultant Proposals               1/21/2022 

Due Date for Proposal Submittals (by 4:30pm) 2/212022 

Review Proposals/Identify Finalists  2/22/2022 – 2/28/2022 

Interview Finalists  between 3/7/2022 and 3/11/2022 

Consultant Notice 3/14/2022 

Contract Negotiations 3/18/2022 

Signed Contract Immediately after contract negotiations 

Notice to Proceed Immediately after signed contract 

 

 

2) Project Development  

Project completion is desired within six months to one year after entering into 

contract. Proposals must include a schedule which shows completion timeframes 

for project milestones and for the final product.  

 

VI EVALUATION AND SELECTION PROCESS 

Selection Committee. The Client will establish a selection committee to select a 

Consultant. The committee will likely consist of Metro COG staff as well as staff from local 

jurisdictions. 

The Consultant selection process will be administered under the following criteria: 

 

• 20% - Understanding of project objectives 

• 20% - Proposed approach, work plan, and management techniques 

• 20% - Experience with similar projects and familiarity with the regional issues 

• 20% - Expertise of the technical and professional staff assigned to the project 

• 20% - Current workload and ability to meet timeline 

 

The Selection Committee, at the discretion of the Client and under the guidance of 

NDDOT policy, will entertain virtual presentations for the top candidates to provide 

additional information for the evaluation process. The presentations will be followed by a 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 14 

question and answer period during which the committee may question the prospective 

Consultants about their proposed approaches. 

A Consultant will be selected  based on an evaluation of the proposals submitted, the 

recommendation of the Selection Committee and approval by the Metro COG Policy 

Board. 

The Client reserves the right to reject any or all proposals or to waive minor irregularities in 

said proposal, and reserves the right to negotiate minor deviations to the proposal with 

the successful Consultant. The Client reserves the right to award a contract to the firm or 

individual that presents the proposal, which, in the sole judgement of the Client, best 

accomplishes the desired results. 

The RFP does not commit the Client to award a contract, to pay any costs incurred in the 

preparation of the contract in response to this request or to procure or contract for 

services or supplies. The Client reserves the right to withdraw this RFP at any time without 

prior notice. 

All proposals, whether selected or rejected, shall become the property of the Client. 

VII PROPOSAL CONTENT 

The purpose of the proposal is to demonstrate the qualifications, competence, and 

capacity of the Consultant seeking to provide comprehensive services specified herein 

for the Client, in conformity with the requirements of the RFP. The proposal should 

demonstrate qualifications of the firm and its staff to undertake this project. It should also 

specify the proposed approach that best meets the RFP requirements. The proposal must 

address each of the service specifications under the Scope of Work and Performance 

Tasks. 

The Client is asking the Consultant to supply the following information. Please include all 

requested information in the proposal to the fullest extent practical. 

1) Contact Information. Name, telephone number, email address, mailing address 

and other contact information for the Consultant’s Project Manager. 

2) Introduction and Executive Summary. This section shall document the Consultant 

name, business address (including telephone, email address(es)), year 

established, type of ownership and parent company (if any), project manager 

name and qualifications, and any major facts, features, recommendations or 

conclusions that may differentiate this proposal from others, if any. 

3) Work Plan and Project Methodology. Proposals shall include the following, at 

minimum: 

a) A detailed work plan identifying the major tasks to be accomplished 

relative to the requested study tasks and expected product as outlined in 

this RFP;  



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 15 

b) A timeline for completion of the requested services, identifying milestones 

for development of the project and completion of individual tasks. 

c) List of projects with similar size, scope, type, and complexity that the 

proposed project team has successfully completed in the past. 

d) List of the proposed principal(s) who will be responsible for the work, 

proposed Project Manager and project team members (with resumes). 

e) A breakout of hours for each member of the team by major task area, and 

an overall indication of the level of effort (percentage of overall project 

team hours) allocated to each task. Note that specific budget information 

is to be submitted in a sealed cost proposal as described below in Section 

IX. General Proposal Requirements.  

f) A list of any subcontracted agencies, the tasks they will be assigned, the 

percent of work to be performed, and the staff that will be assigned. 

g) List of client references for similar projects described within the RFP. 

h) Required Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and/or Minority Business 

Enterprise (MBE) Firms participation documentation, if applicable.  

i) Ability of firm to meet required time schedules based on current and known 

future workload of the staff assigned to the project. 

j) The nature of the counting equipment proposed and details of the reliability 

and proven capability of the equipment to gather accurate, reliable data. 

 

4) Signature. Proposals shall be signed in ink by an authorized member of the 

firm/project team. 

 

5) Attachments. Review, complete, and submit the completed versions of the 

following RFP Attachments with the proposal: 

 

Exhibit A - Cost Proposal Form (as identified in VIII 1) 

Exhibit B – Federal Clauses 

 

VIII  Submittal Information 

PDFs of technical proposals should be emailed to gray@fmmetrocog.org and a hard 

copy of the cost proposal in a sealed envelope should be shipped to ensure timely 

delivery to the contact as defined below: 

Cindy Gray, AICP 

Executive Director 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments  

Case Plaza, Suite 232 

One 2nd Street North 

Fargo, ND 58102-4807 

gray@fmmetrocog.org 

 

mailto:gray@fmmetrocog.org
mailto:gray@fmmetrocog.org


Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 16 

Proposals shall be received by 4:30 pm (Central Time) on Monday, February 21, 2022 at 

the Metro COG office.  Minority, women-owned and disadvantaged business enterprises 

are encouraged to participate. The full length of each proposal should not exceed thirty 

(30) pages; including any supporting material, charts or tables.  

IX  GENERAL RFP REQUIREMENTS 

1) Sealed Cost Proposal. All proposals must be clearly identified and marked with the 

appropriate project name; inclusive of a separately sealed cost proposal per the 

requirements of this RFP. Cost proposals shall be based on an hourly “not to 

exceed” amount and shall follow the general format as provided within Exhibit A 

of this RFP. Metro COG may decide, in its sole discretion, to negotiate a price for 

the project after the selection committee completes its final ranking. Negotiation 

will begin with the Consultant identified as the most qualified per requirements of 

this RFP, as determined in the evaluation/selection process. If Metro COG is unable 

to negotiate a contract for services negotiations will be terminated and 

negotiations will begin with the next most qualified Consultant. This process will 

continue until a satisfactory contract has been negotiated.  

2) Consultant Annual Audit Information for Indirect Cost. Consulting firms proposing 

to do work for Metro COG must have a current audit rate no older than 15 months 

from the close of the firm’s Fiscal Year. Documentation of this audit rate must be 

provided with the sealed cost proposal. Firms that do not meet this requirement 

will not qualify to propose or contract for Metro COG projects until the requirement 

is met. Firms that have submitted all the necessary information to Metro COG and 

are waiting for the completion of the audit will be qualified to submit proposals for 

work. Information submitted by a firm that is incomplete will not qualify. Firms that 

do not have a current cognizant Federal Acquisition Regulations (FARs) audit of 

indirect cost rates must provide this audit prior to the interview. This documentation 

should be attached with the sealed cost proposal.  

3) Debarment of Suspension Certification and Certification of Restriction on Lobbying. 

See Exhibit B, Federal Clauses.  

4) Respondent Qualifications. Respondents must submit evidence that they have 

relevant past experience and have previously delivered services similar to the 

requested services within this RFP. Each respondent may also be required to show 

that similar work has been performed in a satisfactory manner and that no claims 

of any kind are pending against such work. No proposal will be accepted from a 

respondent whom is engaged in any work that would impair his or her ability to 

perform or finance this work. 

5) Disadvantaged Business Enterprise. Pursuant to Department of Transportation 

policy and 49 CFR Part 23, Metro COG supports the participation of DBE/MBE 

businesses in the performance of contracts financed with federal funds under this 

RFP. Consultants shall make an effort to involve DBE/MBE businesses in this project. 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 17 

If the Consultant is a DBE/MBE, a statement indicating that the business is certified 

DBE/MBE in North Dakota or Minnesota shall be included within the proposal. If the 

Consultant intends to utilize a DBE/MBE to complete a portion of this work, a 

statement of the Subconsultant’s certification shall be included. The percent of 

the total proposed cost to be completed by the DBE/MBE shall be shown within 

the proposal. Respondents should substantiate (within proposal) efforts made to 

include DBE/MBE businesses.  

6) US DOT Policy Statement on Bicycle and Pedestrian Accommodations. Consultants 

are advised to review and consider the US DOT Policy Statement on Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Accommodation issued in March of 2010 when developing written 

proposals. 

7) North Dakota Department of Transportation Consultant Administration Services 

Procedure Manual. Applicants to this Request for Proposal are required to follow 

procedures contained in the NDDOT Consultant Administration Services 

Procedure Manual, which includes prequalification of Consultants. Copies of the 

Manual may be found on the Metro COG website www.fmmetrocog.org or the 

NDDOT website at www.dot.nd.gov. 

X CONTRACTUAL INFORMATION 

1) The Client reserves the right to reject any or all proposals or to award the contract 

to the next most qualified firm if the successful firm does not execute a contract 

within forty-five (45) days after the award of the proposal. The Client will not pay 

for any information contained in proposals obtained from participating firms. 

2) The Client reserves the right to request clarification on any information submitted 

and additionally reserves the right to request additional information of one (1) or 

more applicants. 

3) Any proposal may be withdrawn up until the proposal submission deadline. Any 

proposals not withdrawn shall constitute an irrevocable offer for services set forth 

within the RFP for a period of ninety (90) days or until one or more of the proposals 

have been approved by the Metro COG Policy Board. 

4) If, through any cause, the Consultant shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper 

manner the obligations agreed to, the Client shall have the right to terminate its 

contract by specifying the date of termination in a written notice to the firm at 

least ninety (90) working days before the termination date. In this event, the firm 

shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work 

completed. 

5) Any agreement or contract resulting from the acceptance of a proposal shall be 

on forms either supplied by or approved by the Client and shall contain, as a 

minimum, applicable provisions of the Request for Proposals. The Client reserves 

http://www.fmmetrocog.org/
file://///fs/data/Documents/Contracted%20Planning%20(old%20pass%20through)/2018/2018-215%20Fargo%20Safe%20Routes%20to%20Schools%20Study/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/D539LMSI/www.dot.nd.gov


Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 18 

the right to reject any agreement that does not conform to the Request for 

Proposal and any Metro COG requirements for agreements and contracts. 

6) The Consultant shall not assign any interest in the contract and shall not transfer 

any interest in the same without prior written consent of Metro COG.  

XI  PAYMENTS 

The selected Consultant will submit invoices for work completed to the Client. Payments 

shall be made to the Consultant by the Client in accordance with the contract after all 

required services, and items identified in the scope of work and performance tasks, have 

been completed to the satisfaction of the Client. 

XII  FEDERAL AND STATE FUNDS 

The services requested within this RFP will be partially funded with funds from the Federal 

Highway Administration (FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA). As such, the 

services requested by this RFP will be subject to federal and state requirements and 

regulations.  

The services performed under any resulting agreement shall comply with all applicable 

federal, state, and local laws and regulations. In addition, this contract will be subject to 

the relevant requirements of 2 CFR 200.  

XIII  TITLE VI ASSURANCES 

Prospective Consultants should be aware of the following contractual (“Contractor”) 

requirements regarding compliance with Title VI should they be selected pursuant to this 

RFP: 

1) Compliance with Regulations. The Consultant shall comply with the regulations 

relative to nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department 

of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be 

amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations). 

2) Nondiscrimination. The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it, shall 

not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, 

disability/handicap, or income status**, in the selection and retention of 

Subconsultants, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The 

Consultant shall not participate, either directly or indirectly, in the discrimination 

prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices 

when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

3) Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment. 

In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation, made by the 

Consultant for work to be performed under a subcontract, including 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 19 

procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential Subconsultant 

or supplier shall be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant’s obligations to 

Metro COG and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of 

race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability/handicap, or income status**. 

4) Information and Reports. The Consultant shall provide all information and reports 

required by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit 

access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information and its facilities 

as may be determined by Metro COG or the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, 

orders, and instructions. Where any information required of a Consultant is in the 

exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the 

Consultant shall so certify to Metro COG, or the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation, as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to 

obtain the information. 

5) Sanctions for Noncompliance. In the event of the Consultant’s noncompliance 

with the nondiscrimination provisions as outlined herein, the Client and the North 

Dakota Department of Transportation shall impose such sanctions as it or the 

Federal Highway Administration / Federal Transit Administration may determine to 

be appropriate, including but not limited to: 

6) Withholding of payments to the Consultant under the contract until the Consultant 

complies; or 

7) Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 

8) Incorporation of Title VI Provisions. The Consultant shall include the provisions of 

Section XIII, paragraphs 1 through 5 in every subcontract, including procurements 

of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations or 

directives issued pursuant thereto. 

The Consultant shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as 

Metro COG or the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, 

may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for 

noncompliance provided, however, that in the event a Consultant becomes involved in, 

or is threatened with, litigation by a Subconsultant or supplier as a result of such direction, 

the Consultant may request Metro COG enter into such litigation to protect the interests 

of Metro COG; and, in addition, the Consultant may request the United States to enter 

into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

** The Act governs race, color, and national origin. Related Nondiscrimination Authorities 

govern sex, 23 U.S.C. 324; age, 42 U.S.C. 6101; disability/handicap, 29 U.S.C. 790; and low 

income, E.O. 12898. 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 20 

XIV  TERMINATION PROVISIONS 

The Client reserves the right to cancel any contract for cause upon written notice to the 

Consultant. Cause for cancellation will be documented failure(s) of the Consultant to 

provide services in the quantity or quality required. Notice of such cancellation will be 

given with sufficient time to allow for the orderly withdrawal of the Consultant without 

additional harm to the participants or the Client.  

The Client may cancel or reduce the amount of service to be rendered if there is, in the 

opinion of the Client, a significant increase in local costs; or if there is insufficient state or 

federal funding available for the service, thereby terminating the contract or reducing 

the compensation to be paid under the contract. In such event, the Client will notify the 

Consultant in writing ninety (90) days in advance of the date such actions are to be 

implemented. 

In the event of any termination, the Client shall pay the agreed rate only for services 

delivered up to the date of termination. The Client has no obligation to the Consultant, 

of any kind, after the date of termination. Consultant shall deliver all records, equipment 

and materials to the Client within 24 hours of the date of termination. 

XV  LIMITATION ON CONSULTANT 

All reports and pertinent data or materials are the sole property of the Client and its state 

and federal planning partners and may not be used, reproduced or released in any form 

without the explicit, written permission of the Client. 

The Consultant should expect to have access only to the public reports and public files 

of local governmental agencies and the Client in preparing the proposal or reports. No 

compilation, tabulation or analysis of data, definition of opinion, etc., should be 

anticipated by the Consultant from the agencies, unless volunteered by a responsible 

official in those agencies. 

XVI  CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

No Consultant, Subconsultant, or member of any firm proposed to be employed in the 

preparation of this proposal shall have a past, ongoing, or potential involvement which 

could be deemed a conflict of interest under North Dakota Century Code or other law. 

During the term of this Agreement, the Consultant shall not accept any employment or 

engage in any consulting work that would create a conflict of interest with the Client or 

in any way compromise the services to be performed under this agreement. The 

Consultant shall immediately notify the Client of any and all potential violations of this 

paragraph upon becoming aware of the potential violation. 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 21 

XVII  INSURANCE 

The Consultant shall provide evidence of insurance as stated in the contract prior to 

execution of the contract. 

XVIII  RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Consultant agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Client and the state 

of North Dakota, its agencies, officers and employees (State), from and against claims 

based on the vicarious liability of the Client and the State or its agents, but not against 

claims based on the Client's and the State's contributory negligence, comparative 

and/or contributory negligence or fault, sole negligence, or intentional misconduct. The 

legal defense provided by Consultant to the Client and the State under this provision 

must be free of any conflicts of interest, even if retention of separate legal counsel for the 

Client and the State is necessary. Consultant also agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold 

the Client and the State harmless for all costs, expenses and attorneys' fees incurred if 

the Client or the State prevails in an action against Consultant in establishing and 

litigating the indemnification coverage provided herein. This obligation shall continue 

after the termination of this Agreement. 

The Consultant shall secure and keep in force during the term of this agreement, from 

insurance companies, government self-insurance pools or government self-retention 

funds authorized to do business in North Dakota, the following insurance coverage: 

1. Commercial general liability and automobile liability insurance - minimum limits of 

liability required are $250,000 per person and $1,000,000 per occurrence. 

2. Workforce Safety insurance meeting all statutory limits. 

3. The Client and the State of North Dakota, its agencies, officers, and employees 

(State) shall be endorsed as an additional insured on the commercial general 

liability and automobile liability policies. 

4. Said endorsements shall contain a "Waiver of Subrogation" in favor of the Client 

and the state of North Dakota. 

5. The policies and endorsements may not be canceled or modified without thirty 

(30) days prior written notice to the undersigned Client and the State Risk 

Management Department. 

The Consultant shall furnish a certificate of insurance evidencing the requirements in 1, 3, 

and 4, above to the Client prior to commencement of this agreement. 

The Client and the State reserve the right to obtain complete, certified copies of all 

required insurance documents, policies, or endorsements at any time. Any attorney who 

represents the State under this contract must first qualify as and be appointed by the 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 22 

North Dakota Attorney General as a Special Assistant Attorney General as required under 

N.D.C.C. Section 54-12-08. 

When a portion of the work under the Agreement is sublet, the Consultant shall obtain 

insurance protection (as outlined above) to provide liability coverage to protect the 

Consultant, the Client and the State as a result of work undertaken by the Subconsultant. 

In addition, the Consultant shall ensure that any and all parties performing work under 

the Agreement are covered by public liability insurance as outlined above. All 

Subconsultants performing work under the Agreement are required to maintain the same 

scope of insurance required of the Consultant. The Consultant shall be held responsible 

for ensuring compliance with those requirements by all Subconsultants. 

Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary (i.e., pay first) as respects any 

insurance, self-insurance or self-retention maintained by the Client or State. Any 

insurance, self-insurance or self-retention maintained by the Client or the State shall be 

excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it. The insolvency or 

bankruptcy of the insured Consultant shall not release the insurer from payment under 

the policy, even when such insolvency or bankruptcy prevents the insured Consultant 

from meeting the retention limit under the policy. Any deductible amount or other 

obligations under the policy(ies) shall be the sole responsibility of the Consultant. This 

insurance may be in a policy or policies of insurance, primary and excess, including the 

so-called umbrella or catastrophe form and be placed with insurers rated "A-" or better 

by A.M. Best Company, Inc. The Client and the State will be indemnified, saved, and held 

harmless to the full extent of any coverage actually secured by the Consultant in excess 

of the minimum requirements set forth above. 

  



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 23 

Exhibit A – Cost Proposal Form 
 

Cost Proposal Form – Include completed cost form (see below) in a separate sealed 

envelope – labeled “Sealed Cost Form – Vendor Name” and submit with concurrently 

with the technical proposal as part of the overall RFP response. The cost estimate should 

be based on a not to exceed basis and may be further negotiated by Metro COG upon 

identification of the most qualified Consultant. Changes in the final contract amount and 

contract extensions are not anticipated. 

 

REQUIRED BUDGET FORMAT 
Summary of Estimated Project Cost 

1. Direct Labor Hours x Rate  = Project 

Cost  

Total 

 

 

 

Name, Title, Function 

 

0.00 

 

x 

 

0.00 

 

 =  

 

0.00 

 

0.00 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

x 

 

 

 

 =  

 

0.00 

 

0.00 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

x 

 

 

 

 =  

 

0.00 

 

0.00 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      Subtotal 

 

 =  

 

0.00 

 

0.00 
 

2. 

 

Overhead/Indirect Cost (expressed as indirect rate x direct labor) 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 
 

3. 

 

Subconsultant Costs 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 
 

4. 

 

Materials and Supplies Costs 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 
 

5. 

 

Travel Costs 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 
 

6. 

 

Fixed Fee 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 
 

7. 

 

Miscellaneous Costs 

 

0.00 

 

0.00 
 

           Total Cost 

 

 =  

 

0.00 

 

0.00 



Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis 

 

 24 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 

 

 

 

Federal Clauses 

  



��������	��
����

�
��������������������
�����	��
������������������� !� "#�$�����% &'�$���())*"#+,�--���!�

./�	�0�123/4.5�6�

� !� 789:;<=:<>�?8<>;@?>AB�C,D*)'� E�F'G*&H+E*�)&FI+#*#J�* DG�DF"'& D'+"K� K*"DL�EG MM�+"DMN#*�'G*�

OFMMFH+"K�*PN M�F))F&'N"+'L�DM NE*�DF"' +"*#�+"�E*D'+F"�$�$�FO�'G*�F&#*&�+"�* DG�FO�+'E�

QFI*&"R*"'�DF"'& D'E�� "#�RF#+O+D '+F"E�'G*&*FO�+O�"F'�+"DMN#*#�+"�'G*�F&+K+" M�DF"'& D'!S#N&+"K�

'G*�)*&OF&R "D*�FO�'G+E�DF"'& D'J�'G*�DF"'& D'F&� K&**E� E�OFMMFHES�

��!� TG*�DF"'& D'F&�H+MM�"F'�#+ED&+R+" '*� K +"E'� "L�*R)MFL**�F&� ))M+D "'�OF&�*R)MFLR*"'�

U*D NE*�FO�& D*J�DFMF&J�&*M+K+F"J�E*,J�F&�" '+F" M�F&+K+"��TG*�DF"'& D'F&�H+MM�' V*� OO+&R '+I*�

 D'+F"�'F�*"EN&*�'G '� ))M+D "'E� &*�*R)MFL*#J� "#�'G '�*R)MFL**E� &*�'&* '*#�#N&+"K�

*R)MFLR*"'J�H+'GFN'�&*K &#�'F�'G*+&�& D*J�DFMF&J�&*M+K+F"J�E*,J�F&�" '+F" M�F&+K+"��WNDG� D'+F"�

EG MM�+"DMN#*J�UN'�"F'�U*�M+R+'*#�'F�'G*�OFMMFH+"KS�*R)MFLR*"'J�N)K& #+"KJ�#*RF'+F"J�F&�

'& "EO*&J�&*D&N+'R*"'�F&�&*D&N+'R*"'� #I*&'+E+"KX�M LFOO�F&�'*&R+" '+F"X�& '*E�FO�) L�F&�F'G*&�

OF&RE�FO�DFR)*"E '+F"X� "#�E*M*D'+F"�OF&�'& +"+"KJ�+"DMN#+"K� ))&*"'+D*EG+)��TG*�DF"'& D'F&�

 K&**E�'F�)FE'�+"�DF"E)+DNFNE�)M D*EJ� I +M UM*�'F�*R)MFL**E� "#� ))M+D "'E�OF&�

*R)MFLR*"'J�"F'+D*E�'F�U*�)&FI+#*#�UL�'G*�DF"'& D'+"K�FOO+D*&�E*''+"K�OF&'G�'G*�)&FI+E+F"E�FO�

'G+E�"F"#+ED&+R+" '+F"�DM NE*��

�$!� TG*�DF"'& D'F&�H+MMJ�+"� MM�EFM+D+' '+F"E�F&� #I*&'+E*R*"'E�OF&�*R)MFL**E�)M D*#�UL�F&�F"�

U*G MO�FO�'G*�DF"'& D'F&J�E' '*�'G '� MM�PN M+O+*#� ))M+D "'E�H+MM�&*D*+I*�DF"E+#*& '+F"�OF&�

*R)MFLR*"'�H+'GFN'�&*K &#�'F�& D*J�DFMF&J�&*M+K+F"J�E*,J�F&�" '+F" M�F&+K+"��

�Y!� TG*�DF"'& D'F&�H+MM�E*"#�'F�* DG�M UF&�N"+F"�F&�&*)&*E*"' '+I*�FO�HF&V*&E�H+'G�HG+DG�G*�G E�

 �DFMM*D'+I*�U &K +"+"K� K&**R*"'�F&�F'G*&�DF"'& D'�F&�N"#*&E' "#+"KJ� �"F'+D*�'F�U*�

)&FI+#*#�UL�'G*� K*"DL�DF"'& D'+"K�FOO+D*&J� #I+E+"K�'G*�M UF&�N"+F"�F&�HF&V*&EZ�

&*)&*E*"' '+I*�FO�'G*�DF"'& D'F&ZE�DFRR+'R*"'E�N"#*&�E*D'+F"�$�$�FO�C,*DN'+I*�[&#*&�

��$���FO�W*)'*RU*&�$�J��\�]J� "#�EG MM�)FE'�DF)+*E�FO�'G*�"F'+D*�+"�DF"E)+DNFNE�)M D*E�

 I +M UM*�'F�*R)MFL**E� "#� ))M+D "'E�OF&�*R)MFLR*"'��

��!� TG*�DF"'& D'F&�H+MM�DFR)ML�H+'G� MM�)&FI+E+F"E�FO�C,*DN'+I*�[&#*&���$���FO�W*)'*RU*&�$�J�

�\�]J� "#�FO�'G*�&NM*EJ�&*KNM '+F"EJ� "#�&*M*I "'�F&#*&E�FO�'G*�E*D&*' &L�FO�M UF&��

�]!� TG*�DF"'& D'F&�H+MM�ON&"+EG� MM�+"OF&R '+F"� "#�&*)F&'E�&*PN+&*#�UL�C,*DN'+I*�[&#*&���$���FO�

W*)'*RU*&�$�J��\�]J� "#�UL�'G*�&NM*EJ�&*KNM '+F"EJ� "#�F&#*&E�FO�'G*�E*D&*' &L�FO�M UF&J�F&�

)N&EN "'�'G*&*'FJ� "#�H+MM�)*&R+'� DD*EE�'F�G+E�UFFVEJ�&*DF&#EJ� "#� DDFN"'E�UL�'G*�

DF"'& D'+"K� K*"DL� "#�'G*�E*D&*' &L�FO�M UF&�OF&�)N&)FE*E�FO�+"I*E'+K '+F"�'F� ED*&' +"�

DFR)M+ "D*�H+'G�ENDG�&NM*EJ�&*KNM '+F"EJ� "#�F&#*&E��

��!� -"�'G*�*I*"'�FO�'G*�DF"'& D'F&ZE�"F"�DFR)M+ "D*�H+'G�'G*�"F"#+ED&+R+" '+F"�DM NE*E�FO�'G+E�

DF"'& D'�F&�H+'G� "L�FO�ENDG�&NM*EJ�&*KNM '+F"EJ�F&�F&#*&EJ�'G+E�DF"'& D'�R L�U*�D "D*M*#J�

'*&R+" '*#�F&�ENE)*"#*#�+"�HGFM*�F&�+"�) &'� "#�'G*�DF"'& D'F&�R L�U*�#*DM &*#�+"*M+K+UM*�

OF&�ON&'G*&�KFI*&"R*"'�DF"'& D'E�+"� DDF&# "D*�H+'G�)&FD*#N&*E� N'GF&+̂*#�+"�C,*DN'+I*�

[&#*&���$���FO�W*)'*RU*&�$�J��\�]J� "#�ENDG�F'G*&�E "D'+F"E�R L�U*�+R)FE*#� "#�

&*R*#+*E�+"IFV*#� E�)&FI+#*#�+"�C,*DN'+I*�[&#*&���$���FO�W*)'*RU*&�$�J��\�]J�F&�UL�&NM*J�

&*KNM '+F"J�F&�F&#*&�FO�'G*�E*D&*' &L�FO�M UF&J�F&� E�F'G*&H+E*�)&FI+#*#�UL�M H��



��� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

������������������������������������������ ������������ �������������������������������������

���������������������������
!"����#���������$�������
"%����&���������
" ��'%( ���������

�����������������������������������������������������������������)�����������������������*��

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������������+�,-./01213�4.52/2-3����������������������������������������������������� ����

������������������ ������������������������������������������������������������������������ �����

�����������������6������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������7������&�����)�

� 8�9:;�<=>?�8@@�ABBCDEFG�HH�I9J�

�K� #6����#����������$����������)�#����������������������������������"��KLM�N����%! ���������������

OPQO�RSSO�OPS�TSUVWVOVXW�XU�YUSTSZQ[[\�Q]]V]OST�̂XW]OZ_̂OVXW�̂XWOZQ̂Ò�VW�ab�cde�fQZO�ghi�)j������

�������������6��������������������������������������"��KLM�%!i�)"�� ��������������������

klŜ_OVmS�nZTSZ�bboagp�Ykq_Q[�kRr[X\RSWO�nrrXZO_WVO\̀�sth�de�botbup�boutvp�t�cde�fQZOp�bugai

�'%(�K���) ��)�jj' �����RSWTST�w\�klŜ_OVmS�nZTSZ�bbtxvp�YyRSWTVWz�klŜ_OVmS�nZTSZ�bboag�

eS[QOVWz�OX�kq_Q[�kRr[X\RSWO�nrrXZO_WVO\p̀�QWT�VRr[SRSWOVWz�ZSz_[QOVXW]�QO�ab�cde�rQZO�ghp�

YnUUV̂S�XU�dSTSZQ[�cXWOZQ̂O�cXRr[VQŴS�fZXzZQR]p�kq_Q[�kRr[X\RSWO�nrrXZO_WVO\p�{SrQZORSWO�XU�

|QwXZ}̀�

~=D�?F�D��=DE�<CD=�?FC����>��>C=������9�D?>=�?���
�KLM�N����
!!����������������

���K����������������������������������������6��������������������������������������(! !!! ����������

������������������������������������������������K�����������������6���������K���������������

����������6���������M�����������K��������K�������������������������"��7)&)K)��'!� ��������������

�������������� ������������ ��������������������������������������������������������������������

�������������� ������������������������������������������������������������)�

�C>�FD=?F�D���>�9=��C�=DE�9�D�CDFCD�C���
�KLM�N����
!!��������������	�

�	� �����������������������������! !!!���������������������������������������������������������������

���iL��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�

;F��?��?��HD�CD?F�D���=EC��DEC>�=�9�D?>=�?��>�A�>CC�CD?���
�KLM�N����
!!��������������L�

�L� M�������������������������7�������K��������������������)��������L�����������������������

TSUVWVOVXW�XU�YU_WTVWz�QzZSSRSWÒ�_WTSZ�tx�cde���ahb}o�sQ��QWT�OPS�ZŜVrVSWO�XZ�]_wZŜVrVSWO�

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������������������� ������������������������������������������ �������������� �������������

���*�_WTSZ�OPQO�YU_WTVWz�QzZSSRSWOp̀�OPS�ZŜVrVSWO�XZ�]_wZŜVrVSWO�R_]O�̂XRr[\��VOP�OPS�

ZSq_VZSRSWO]�XU�tx�cde�fQZO�ahbp�YeVzPO]�OX��WmSWOVXW]��QTS�w\��XWrZXUVO�nZzQWV�QOVXW]�QWT�



�����	���������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!�

�������������������������������"#��$��%����������#&�

'()*+,(-.�*-/�0123(-245-�6�7���8�9���7::����������;;�<;=�

>?@� A�"��������������������<B���������C������D7EFG����D7HIG=J����������%���<����7���8�

DI:&77:=����������"���������������������������$������������%����B��������9������K�����#�����

����$���#�����L����%���M��������<��M=��������������%��$��$��CM	��������������7���8�DI:�

�$������������B���������C������D7EFG�<
���8�9���DGIH�����&���&�DIG=����D7HIG�<
���8�9���

DGIG�����&���&�7
E=��NOPQ�RSP�T��� �UVWXP�WYZ�[��\]P�̂_̀aV P �b�RTYPW�cYWT�U!WTPS�Y��Ude�

���������$��������L����������"����������������������$��%�������������"#������������%������

����������������������"����������������#������������#���$����#���$����$��B���������C�����

D7EFG&�

fg+/�h-.4ij5))g4-k�h,(-/,(-.�6�7���8�9���7::����������;;�<l=�

<l=� 	#�������6K�""#��������������<
D��&�&�&�D
E7=J������������$�����#����"���L�����%����L�

mD::�:::��������������L�����$����n�����������L������&�B�$�����������L��������$�������"�����$�����

%�����������$�����������������������������L���������#��#����������������o�����L���

��L���������������������������L����������LL�������������#����L��#�����#������"����L�

�����������LL�������������#����L���������������������#����L�����"����L�������������

�����������%��$��"��������#��������������������������#���$���%�����������"#�
D��&�&�&�

D
E7&�B�$�������������������������#���""#����%��$����6�������L������$���p�����������

�����������%��$��"��������#��������%��&����$����������������L��%�����L��������������������

����$�����6�������%��&�



         

 

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal│ Page 0 

 

 

StreetLight InSight®                 
Regional Subscription Proposal 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 
Council of Governments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed by 
Matt Barkley 
matt.barkley@streetlightdata.com 
512-569-0627 

gray
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 3d, Attachment 3



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 1 

StreetLight InSight® Regional Subscription  
Proposal Contents 

StreetLight InSight® Regional Subscription ................................................................................ 1 

Proposal Contents ..................................................................................................................... 1 

StreetLight Data, Inc. ................................................................................................................. 2 

About StreetLight InSight® ......................................................................................................... 3 

Regional Subscription ................................................................................................................ 4 

Subscription Fee .................................................................................................................... 4 

StreetLight Service Credits ..................................................................................................... 5 

Service Credit Delivery ........................................................................................................... 6 

Custom Projects ..................................................................................................................... 6 

Authorized Users ................................................................................................................... 6 

Geographic Limit .................................................................................................................... 6 

Support .................................................................................................................................. 6 
StreetLight InSight® Account Dashboard ............................................................................... 6 
Customer Success ................................................................................................................. 7 
Support Resources ................................................................................................................ 7 
StreetLight Training Portal ...................................................................................................... 8 
StreetLight User Summits ...................................................................................................... 8 

StreetLight InSight® Metrics and Subscription Tier .................................................................... 8 

Using StreetLight InSight® ........................................................................................................10 

Step 1: Create or Select Zones .............................................................................................10 

Step 2: Define an Analysis ....................................................................................................11 

Step 3: Visualize Maps and Charts of the Results .................................................................11 

Step 4: Download Results and Share with Stakeholders .......................................................12 

Appendix: Glossary of StreetLight InSight® Terms ...................................................................13 
 



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 2 

StreetLight Data, Inc. 

StreetLight Data, Inc. (“StreetLight”) is the first company that makes it easy, affordable, and 
efficient to collect real-world transportation data. We bring mobility patterns to light for planners, 
modelers, and engineers by giving them on-demand access to industry-leading Big Data 
resources and processing software. Our interactive online platform, StreetLight InSight®, is the 
only web application that lets you turn anonymous location data from millions of mobile devices 
into on-demand customized, actionable analytics. We make it easy to put Big Data to work 
for infrastructure and policy planning.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 3 

About StreetLight InSight® 

StreetLight InSight® users can access customized analytics like Origin-Destination, select link, 
turning movement counts, travel time, speed percentiles, routing, and more in just a few mouse 
clicks – without downloading any software.  

This is what sets StreetLight InSight® apart:  

 Industry-Leading Big Data Sources:  
o Access to multiple types of real-world, empirical geospatial data created by 

mobile devices. We add new, up-to-date location data sets to our repositories 
monthly.   

o Large sample of comprehensive, representative data sets that covers over 110 
million devices in the U.S. and Canada. 

o Data is scalable and appropriate for micro, meso, and macro studies, thanks to 
its high spatial precision. 

 
 On-Demand Processing Software: 

o Easy-to-use software platform allows you to independently run your own 
analytics on demand with specific, customized parameters (i.e., type of day, time 
of day, commercial or personal vehicle trips, etc.).   

o Quick and efficient processing times mean that most analytics are ready in 
minutes and more complex studies available in hours, enabling your staff to 
focus more time on planning and problem-solving than on data-crunching.  

o Software-as-a-service subscription model allows your organization to run an 
unlimited number of analyses within your geography without incremental costs, 
making it affordable to collect data regularly and to study behavior changes over 
time.  

 
 Actionable Analytics: 

o Analytics are purpose-built for transportation planning and engineering projects 
and designed to facilitate project performance measurement.  

o Analytics are downloadable as .CSV files, so it is easy to use them with other 
modeling and analysis tools and combine them with existing data resources.  

 

StreetLight InSight® uses StreetLight’s proprietary analytic processing engine, Route 
Science®, to derive the analytics you need from Big Data. Route Science® algorithmically 
integrates trillions of spatial data points from millions of devices—cell phones, connected 
cars, fleet management systems, smartphone applications, and more—into trips and 
activities. It also incorporates dozens of additional spatial and statistical data sets, such as 
Census and land use information, which enhances these StreetLight InSight® Metrics’ 
contextual richness. 

 Key processing steps include: 
o Anonymization: All data is anonymous. All Metrics describe groups, never 

individuals, to protect privacy. 
o Data Cleansing: False signals from inbound data are removed. 



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 4 

o Patternization: Data is organized into trips and series of activities, including the 
identification of trip origins and destinations, and the route taken along the road 
network. 

o Contextualization: By using information like speed limits, road network 
presence, and census data, additional richness is added to Metrics.  

o Metric Creation: You can specify queries (e.g., key zones, time parameters, and 
more), and StreetLight InSight® quickly delivers Metrics as CSVs and 
visualizations as described below. 

 

Currently, hundreds of transportation planners from public agencies, transportation consulting 
firms, and private companies regularly use StreetLight InSight® to create analytics that support 
key projects. In addition, several state transportation agencies and MPOs, including VDOT, 
ODOT, MnDOT, TXDOT, MassDOT, MaineDOT, LADOT, and NYCDOT, have software-as-a-
service Regional Subscriptions that allow them to run an unlimited number of analyses on as 
many zones and roads as they like within their geography.  

Regional Subscription  

This proposal details an annual Regional Subscription for Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council 
of Governments to StreetLight InSight®. The Regional Subscription allows you to run an 
unlimited number of StreetLight InSight® analyses during the year within the limited geographic 
region around the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Metropolitan Planning 
Area (MPA) contained entirely within the State of North Dakota. Use will be subject to a 
standard StreetLight End User License Agreement.   

Subscription Fee 

Regional Subscription Fees are dependent upon the Tier of Subscription and on the number of 
residents in the applicable geographic region served by the agency. For this proposal, Fargo-
Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Government’s North Dakota population is assumed to be < 
250,000. 

Annual Subscription Fee 

Advanced Analytics Tier 

Single Domain 

Only Access for Agency Users + 5 Consultants + North Dakota State University 

Annual Subscription Fee: $59,000 +$5,900 (10% minimum service credit bundle) = 
$64,900 - $6,000 (fee for accessing Minnesota Department of Transportation 
subscription) = $58,900 - $9,400 (16% discount for executing the contract before 
February 1, 2022) = $49,500 



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 5 

Customer is responsible for all applicable taxes. Bundled Service credits can be purchased and 
used as needed throughout the course of your Term. View more details about the service 
credits below.  

This quote is valid until January 31, 2022. 

 

StreetLight Service Credits 

StreetLight Service Credits provide a solution to complete a study when you have limited 
resources and time to conduct the analysis using StreetLight InSight® yourself. Our team of 
StreetLight InSight® experts will conduct the analysis for your project and deliver a report of the 
findings. These credits enable you to use StreetLight resources to: 

 Prepare and create analyses and zone sets (including uploading standard geographic 
zone sets, defining line segments, and adding calibration zones based on your set of 
calibration data). 

 Run any standard StreetLight InSight® analysis types, including the use of the 
Calibration feature. 
 

For all studies and tasks described below, you will work within a structured and time-bound 
format to define your required projects and zones, including: 1) Discovery Call (up to 1 hour), 
and 2) Project Plan Delivery and Review with up to two iterations to final plan. Output formats 
for reports may include a spreadsheet and/or PowerPoint file.  

These are examples of potential studies and tasks:  

Project/Task Description 

1. Corridor Study 

2. Detour Planning 

3. Congestion Causes 

4. Infrastructure Investment for Bike/Ped 

5. Infrastructure Investment for EV 
Charging 

6. Internal/Internal/External/External Study 

7. Internal/External Cut Through 



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 6 

8. Turning Movement Counts 

9. VMT Analysis 

 

Service Credit Delivery 

All Metrics are available as .shp files, CSV files, and visualizations. All Metrics outputs are 
available as an estimated number of vehicle trips for your analysis, known as StreetLight 
volume. This is comparable to real-world count data and is based off of an algorithm trained with 
real-world data and seasonal factors. 

 

Custom Projects 

For solutions that require analysis with customized parameters not available in our StreetLight 
InSight® platform, our team is able to provide a customized analysis that allows you to use 
customized analytics to understand travel behavior in your community. An example of this 
solution is Custom Tours that enable you to see trips that are linked together to gain an 
understanding of longer trips. For these projects, StreetLight will: 1) Conduct a Discovery Call to 
understand the question you are trying to answer, and 2) Develop a Statement of Work that 
provides an estimated delivery timeline and number of Service Credits. StreetLight will deliver 
the analysis to your specifications in a CSV format, along with a PowerPoint presentation 
explaining the results.  

Authorized Users 

Up to 10 staff members who work on transportation and attend a basic training session will be 
allowed access to the web application. In addition, included in any Tier of Subscription is the 
option to specify up to 5 named consultants to be additional authorized users of the web 
application for particular projects.  

Geographic Limit 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments will be limited to running analyses for 
trips that start, end, or pass through the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments 
MPA in North Dakota.   

Support 

STREETLIGHT INSIGHT® ACCOUNT DASHBOARD 



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 7 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments managers and leadership will be granted 
access to an online account dashboard in order to monitor usage of the subscription by 
authorized users. Information about number of analyses run, location in the region, and cost 
savings as compared to pulling data “ad hoc” for every analysis.  

CUSTOMER SUCCESS  

The StreetLight Customer Success Team manages the relationship with StreetLight and the 
customer’s organizations to introduce, transition and integrate Big Data analytics into their 
organization and projects. The Customer Success Team works with the customer’s 
organizational leadership to define the best use cases, success criteria and areas of focus for 
the customers’ organization to begin integrating the StreetLight InSight® platform into their 
work.   

The Customer Success Executive will engage with users to ensure they have the necessary 
materials in-hand to adapt the Metrics into their work. The organization will have a dedicated 
Customer Success Executive who works to empower customers to fully leverage the StreetLight 
InSight® platform. Team members are proficient in the transportation industry and work one-on-
one with users, as well as organizational leadership, to ensure a worthwhile return on 
investment. 

Working with StreetLight’s Customer Support team, the Customer Success Executive 
coordinates and facilitates the onboarding of users to the StreetLight InSight® platform.  

Typical Customer Success activities include: 

 Dedicated subject matter expertise 
 Quarterly subscription review meetings with agency leadership 
 Product training sessions, both in-person and via webinar 
 Facilitation of at least one agency-specific user group 
 One-on-one user and team meetings 
 Regular communication on product updates 
 Feedback sessions with users on desired product enhancements 

 

At the start of the subscription, the Customer Success Executive will outline a customer journey 
plan to ensure adoption of the platform for Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of 
Governments users and a plan to communicate the success of the Metrics to the organization’s 
stakeholders. 

 

SUPPORT RESOURCES 

StreetLight maintains a comprehensive online Support Center with FAQs, step by step tutorials, 
and a Community Forum. The Community Forum enables StreetLight InSight® users across 
North American agencies and engineering firms to share tips and tricks and discuss how best to 



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 8 

use Big Data analytics for a variety of transportation applications. StreetLight’s North America-
based Support Team is also available to answer questions users have on a day-to-day basis. 
The Support Team can be contacted via a dedicated email address, and team members are 
available during normal business hours across all time zones in Continental North America. 

 

 

STREETLIGHT TRAINING PORTAL 

Our StreetLight Training portal, with handcrafted content developed by our experts, offers self-
paced eLearning courses and live training sessions to help users get the most out of the 
StreetLight InSight® platform. This includes: 

 Guided eLearning courses: Customized learning paths that introduce users to specific 
topics in bite-sized units. Our handcrafted courses are developed by our experts to help 
you learn what each feature is, when it's helpful, and how to use it. 

 Interactive live trainings: Live, in-depth group training sessions that tackle everything 
from the fundamentals to tips and tricks, and more advanced topics. These sessions are 
interactive and include a live Q&A session with the StreetLight team. 

STREETLIGHT USER SUMMITS 

StreetLight holds User Summits in cities rotating throughout North America each year. 
These events provide opportunities for users from across different public agencies and 
engineering firms to present use cases and share examples about lessons learned from 
use of the StreetLight InSight® software. Training sessions, product roadmap “sneak 
peeks,” and feedback sessions also occur. Included in Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 
Council of Governments’s subscription are 2 complimentary tickets for users to attend each 
summit. 

StreetLight InSight® Metrics and Subscription Tier 

StreetLight provides subscription-based access to the Metrics described below (detailed 
descriptions of each of the Metrics are found in the Appendix):  



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 9 

 

 



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 10 

 

All Metrics are available as .shp files CSV files, and visualizations. All Metrics are available 
as normalized StreetLight Index values and estimated vehicle counts. Estimated vehicle 
counts can be automatically scaled from Index values in StreetLight InSight® with 
StreetLight AADT or when users upload their local ADT, AADT, or similar data using the 
StreetLight InSight® Calibration feature.  

 

Using StreetLight InSight® 

Step 1: Create or Select Zones 

Users can define “zones” in StreetLight InSight® in three ways: by uploading a standard 
shapefile, by drawing zones in our interactive “Create New Zone Set” module (see Figure 1 
below), or selecting standard area zones directly from our zone library (see Figure 2 below). 
Drawn or uploaded zones can be standard geographies (e.g. ZIP Codes or census 
geographies) or unique, customized shapes. The following zones types are available for 
selection in the zone library: OSM line segments, Zip Codes, Census Tracts, Census Block 
Groups, Rail zones, and Traffic Analysis Zones. 

 

Figure 1: Create New Zone Set module 



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 11 

 

Figure 2: Zone Library module 

Step 2: Define an Analysis 

After uploading, drawing zones, or selecting pre-set zones from the Zone Library in StreetLight 
InSight®, users create their analyses. This step includes defining zones as origins or 
destinations, and setting key parameters such as time periods to study, day part definitions, trip 
types, and other specifications (see Figure 3 below).    

 
Figure 3: Customizing day parts, data periods, day types, etc. in StreetLight InSight®. 

 

Step 3: Visualize Maps and Charts of the Results 

Users can visualize travel patterns within StreetLight InSight® (see Figure 4 below). There are 
simple toggles so that travel patterns can be visualized as maps or as charts at specific day 
parts, times of day, and more.   



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 12 

Figure 4: Visualizing Origin-Destination patterns at different times and types of day in StreetLight InSight®. 

 

Step 4: Download Results and Share with Stakeholders 

All StreetLight InSight® Metrics can be downloaded for further analysis and manipulation in 
Microsoft Excel or other analysis tools (see Figure 5 below). All charts and Viz3D map graphics 
can be exported via high-quality screenshot capabilities as well. 

Figure 5: Selecting Metrics to download and analyzing O-D Metrics in a CSV file using MS Excel. 

  



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 13 

Appendix: Glossary of StreetLight InSight® Terms 

Analysis: A “run” or “query” within StreetLight InSight®. The user selects zones, a project type, and 
project options for each project, then runs the project by clicking “confirm.” 

Analysis Options: Available for most project types. These allow the user to configure options, such as 
day parts, day types, or data source, before running an analysis. 

Commercial Vehicle Segmentation: Medium-Duty Trucks = 14,000 – 26,000 lbs., Heavy-Duty Trucks > 
26,000 lbs. 

Core Transportation Behavior Metrics: They include Origin-Destination, Origin-Destination with Middle 
Filter, Origin-Destination with Preset Geographies, Zone Analysis, Trip Attributes, Traveler Attributes, and 
Home and Work Locations.  

Data Period: Months to analyze, which can be selected to range from January 2014 to 1 to 2 months 
from date of analysis. Availability of data periods may vary based on mode of travel. 

Data Sources: Navigation-GPS (GPS) and/or Location-Based Services (LBS). The system recommends 
or requires certain data sources for certain types of zones and analyses. However, the user may select 
which data source to use for several Metrics. 

Day Part: Grouping of hours-of-the-day for an analysis. 15-minute bin day parts are available to analyze 
more granular metrics. If defaults are not appropriate, users can customize these values. 

Day Type: Grouping of days-of-the-week for an analysis. If defaults are not appropriate, users can 
customize these values.  

Device Type: Type of vehicle analyzed. 

Home and Work Locations: Inferred probable home and work locations for composite groups of people 
aggregated to 1km X 1km grids, Census Block Groups, ZIP Codes, metropolitan areas, and states. 

Intersection: Contains three or fours “gates” that serve as zones. This is only available in the Turning 
Movement Counts analysis type. 

Origin-Destination Matrix: Relative volume and average travel time of commercial and personal trips 
between origin and destination zones. Users may enter both origins and destinations of their choice or 
use a standard geography such as “all ZIP Codes.” 

Origin-Destination through Middle Filters (combine with O-D for Routing): Relative volume and 
average travel time of trips that pass through middle-filter zones, or links, when traveling between origin 
and destination zones. 

Peak Hour Factor: Compares the busiest 15-minutes to the average 15-minute volume during the peak 
hour, indicating how consistent traffic volume is during the peak hour. 

Segment Analysis: Provides the relative volume, speed percentiles including 85th percentile, average 
speed, travel time, and “Free Flow Factor” of trips through corridors. The Free Flow Factor represents a 
ratio of the average trip speed for the day part to the maximum average trip speed for the segment in any 
hour during the entire data period. 



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 14 

Specific Date: The ability to run single days as an analysis or different “collections” of days as a new day 
type. This feature also allows you to exclude certain days. 

StreetLight AADT: Estimate of average annual daily traffic in 2020 (U.S. and Canada). You can also 
access historic AADT from 2017, 2018, and 2019. (Note: This Metric is provided as an estimated count 
based on 365 days of data. It is derived from multiple data sources, including both navigation-GPS and 
Location-Based Services data).  

Traveler Attributes: Trip purpose (Home-, Work-, or Other-based combinations), Demographics of 
Travelers (Household Income, Race, Education Level of Head of Household, and Family Status). 

Trends Over Time: “Trends Over Time” enables running any analysis for as many different data periods 
as desired (e.g., Jan 2017 vs. Feb 2017, Summer vs, Winter).  

Turning Movement Counts: Provides intersection volumes with 15-minute granularity, Peak Hour 
Factor, Peak AM/PM Metrics, and more. 

Trip Attributes: Travel time, trip length, trip speed, trip circuity. Trip Attributes Metrics are provided as an 
average and as a distribution of values into customizable bins. 

Trip Circuity: The average and distribution of circuity for trips between zones, or at a zone.  Circuity is 
defined as (length of trip) / (crow’s flight distance between start and end point). 

Travel Time (seconds): The average and distribution trip time in seconds for trips between zones, or at a 
zone. 

Trip Length (miles): The average and distribution trip length in miles for trips between zones, or at a 
zone. 

Trip Speed (mph): The average trip and distribution speed in miles per hour for trips between zones, or 
at a zone. 

Trips to or from Preset Geography Analysis: Origin-Destination by ZIP Code, Census Block Group, or 
Census TAZs, to a corresponding set of zones. This analysis type is ideal if you don’t know your full zone 
matrix, and instead want to see how a set of zones relates to standard geographies. 

Zone Activity Analysis: Relative volume of trips that originate in, have destinations in, or pass through 
each zone analyzed. 

Zone Library: The Zone Library is a feature that lets you choose zones you want to analyze from a map 
without having to draw or upload zones into zone sets. This includes OSM Line Segments, Standard 
Areas (Zip Codes, Census Block Groups, Traffic Analysis Zones, Census Tracts, Canada Dissemination 
Areas, Canada Census Tracts, Canada Census Subdivisions), and Rail (Rail Stations and Rail Lines). 

Zone Traffic: StreetLight trip value representing the volume of all trips at a zone. Depending on whether 
the zone is pass-through or not, this will represent trips that pass through the zone, or trips that start or 
end in the zone. 

  



   

Proprietary and Confidential  Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Proposal │ Page 15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

© StreetLight Data, Inc. 2021. All rights reserved. 

 



  

A PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING 

FARGO, WEST FARGO, HORACE, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA AND MOORHEAD, DILWORTH, CLAY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 

Council of Governments 
p: 701.232.3242 | f: 701.232.5043 

e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org 

www.fmmetrocog.org 

 

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North 

Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 

Agenda Item 3e 

 

 

 

To: Policy Board 

From: Cindy Gray, Executive Director & Adam Altenburg 

Date: January 14, 2022 

Re: Letter of Support - Greater Northwest Passenger Rail Coalition 

 

The Greater Northwest Passenger Rail Coalition is a network of local, county, and state 

level partners that formed in 2020 to support initiatives to return intercity passenger rail 

service to communities in the Greater Northwest. This region is loosely defined as the 

states of Washington, Oregon, Idaho, Utah, Colorado, Wyoming, Montana, North 

Dakota, South Dakota, and portions of Minnesota and Wisconsin. A key focus of the 

group is the North Coast Hiawatha route through Fargo-Moorhead, Bismarck-Mandan, 

and Southern Montana – connecting Chicago to the West Coast. 

The coalition met with staff from the City of Fargo and Metro COG in November, 

followed by an informational meeting in the Fargo City Commission Chambers on 

December 10. Both of these meetings provided details on the coalition’s initiatives and 

detailed the positive impacts passenger rail has on communities. 

The coalition has been seeking support from local and state governments on the 

development of a formal Working Group through congressional legislation, as well as 

other steps to restore passenger rail service. The proposed actions include the 

following: 

 

1. Coordinate action by a bipartisan group in Congress representing the core of 

this region to work toward restoring passenger rail service to the Greater 

Northwest. 

2. Formalize the Greater Northwest Passenger Rail Working Group by congressional 

legislation to be convened by the Secretary of Transportation. The group would 

be in charge of studying and developing service development plans for the 

Pioneer, North Coast Hiawatha, and other routes within the Greater Northwest 

region as determined by the Working Group. The goal of this group is to make 

the overall system more robust and resilient with enhanced national long- 

distance rail connectivity and greater economic and social wellbeing of rural 

America. 

3. Allocate 25 percent of any congressionally authorized funding to restore and 

revitalize passenger rail service in the United States for rural long-distance routes 

through a combination of reinvestment in existing long-distance routes and 

expansion of the national rural long-distance network. The rural long-distance 

funding will include full funding for restoration of both the Pioneer and North 

Coast Hiawatha routes. 

4. Pass the Interstate Rail Compacts Advancement Act, which authorizes the 

formation of up to ten Interstate Passenger Rail Compacts/Commissions, to carry 

the Working Group’s studies forward to implementation.  

 

 



  

A PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING 

FARGO, WEST FARGO, HORACE, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA AND MOORHEAD, DILWORTH, CLAY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 

Council of Governments 
p: 701.232.3242 | f: 701.232.5043 

e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org 

www.fmmetrocog.org 

 

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North 

Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 

 

 

 

 

In addition to nearly 55 Letters/Resolutions of Support from cities, counties, MPOs, and 

other entities across seven states, the Greater Northwest Passenger Rail Coalition 

recently received support from a bipartisan group of U.S. senators including Senator 

Hoeven and Senator Cramer to establish a Greater Northwest Working Group. 

 

https://www.bigskyrail.org/news/media-release-northwest-us-senators-urge-the-

federal-railroad-administration-to-create-passenger-rail-working-group 

 

 

Requested Action: Sign the Letter of Support for the Greater Northwest Passenger Rail 

Coalition for the Formal Creation of the Greater Northwest Passenger Rail Working 

Group 

 

https://www.bigskyrail.org/news/media-release-northwest-us-senators-urge-the-federal-railroad-administration-to-create-passenger-rail-working-group
https://www.bigskyrail.org/news/media-release-northwest-us-senators-urge-the-federal-railroad-administration-to-create-passenger-rail-working-group


 

A PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING 

FARGO, WEST FARGO, HORACE, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA AND MOORHEAD, DILWORTH, CLAY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 

Council of Governments 
p: 701.532.5100| f: 701.232.5043 

e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org 

www.fmmetrocog.org 

 

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street N 

Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 

 
 
 
 
 

January 14, 2022 

 

 

Dan Bilka, Board of Directors 

Greater Northwest Passenger Rail Coalition 

 

 

RE: Support the Formal Creation of the Greater Northwest Passenger Rail Working Group 

 

 

The Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments (Metro COG) views passenger rail 

service as an essential element of the regional and national surface transportation system. 

Passenger rail service has the ability to support economic development and job growth, connect 

rural communities, and help reduce roadway congestion in metropolitan areas. 

 

For the past 50 years, many people living in the Greater Northwest, including North Dakota and 

Minnesota, have lacked access to passenger rail services. However, Metro COG understands that 

there is a growing awareness at the local, regional, and state level to find innovate ways to bring 

these services back and to return vibrant, reliable intercity passenger rail service to the Greater 

Northwest. 

 

As such, Metro COG supports the formalization of the Greater Northwest Passenger Rail 

Working Group to study and develop service development plans for the North Coast Hiawatha 

through North Dakota, as well as other routes within the Greater Northwest region. This would 

greatly improve our regional and national transportation system by ensuring that it becomes 

more robust and resilient, while furthering the economic and social wellbeing of communities 

across the region. It would also provide for transportation options that are accessible and 

equitable, serving the needs of all its users, while complementing other transportation modes. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Dave Piepkorn, Chair     Cindy Gray, Executive Director 

FM Metropolitan Council of Governments  FM Metropolitan Council of Governments 

 

 

 

altenburg
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 3e Attachment 1

altenburg
Typewritten Text

altenburg
Typewritten Text

altenburg
Typewritten Text


	597 Policy Board Agenda January 2022.pdf
	Agenda Item 1d - 596 Policy Board Minutes December 2021.pdf
	Agenda Item 2c - 2022-2025_TIP_AA01.pdf
	Agenda Item 2c Att 1 - Admin_Adjust_01_22_25_TIP.pdf
	Agenda Item 3b - PB Memo - 25th Street Corridor Study consultant selection.pdf
	Agenda Item 3c - PB Memo - TH10 thru Dilworth_Consultant_Selection.pdf
	Agenda Item 3d - Amendment 4 2021-2022 UWPW.pdf
	Agenda Item 3d Att 1 UPWP Am 4.pdf
	Agenda Item 7 Attachment 1 - Metro COG_City of Fargo_Housing Study Project Management_12-22-2021
	Agenda Item 7 Attachment 1b - Metropolitan Housing Needs Analysis Project Administration by Metro COG

	Agenda Item 3d Attachment 2 - RFP UPWP Am 4.pdf
	Revised Draft RFP Metro-Wide Housing Needs Analysis_01102022
	Metro COG Baseline 2050 Demogr RFP_FINAL_August 2021_Revised 25
	Metro COG Baseline 2050 Demogr RFP_FINAL_August 2021_Revised 26
	Metro COG Baseline 2050 Demogr RFP_FINAL_August 2021_Revised 27

	Agenda Item 3d Attachment 3 Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments - Jan 2022 Proposal.pdf
	Agenda Item 3e - Letter of Support - Greater Northwest Passenger Rail Coalition.pdf
	Agenda Item 3e Att1 Letter of Support - Greater Northwest Passenger Rail Coalition.pdf



